
 

 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Planning Committee 

 
Thursday, 22 August 2019 

6.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Municipal Offices 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Garth Barnes (Chair), Paul Baker (Vice-Chair), Stephen Cooke, 
Diggory Seacome, Victoria Atherstone, Bernard Fisher, Dilys Barrell, 
Mike Collins, Alex Hegenbarth, Karl Hobley, Paul McCloskey, 
Tony Oliver, Simon Wheeler, John Payne and Rowena Hay 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the meeting 

 

Agenda  
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENT SITE VISITS 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 

5.   MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 
 

(Pages 7 - 14) 

6.   PLANNING/LISTED BUILDING/CONSERVATION AREA 
CONSENT/ADVERTISEMENT APPLICATIONS, 
APPLICATIONS FOR LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 
CERTIFICATE AND TREE RELATED APPLICATIONS – 
SEE MAIN SCHEDULE 
 

 

 a)   19/01141/FUL 2 Bethesda Street 
 

(Pages 15 - 44) 

 b)   19/01230/FUL 151 Old Bath Road 
 

(Pages 45 - 56) 

 c)   19/01237/FUL 1 Hamilton Street 
 

(Pages 57 - 96) 

 d)   19/01296/FUL 3 Wendover Gardens 
 

(Pages 97 - 116) 

 e)   19/01298/FUL 26 Hatherley Court Road 
 

(Pages 117 - 132) 

 f)   19/01375/FUL 21 Canterbury Walk (Pages 133 - 142) 



 

 
2 
 

 
7.   APPEALS UPDATE 

An update from the Head of Planning  
 

(Pages 143 - 144) 

8.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES 
URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION 
 

 

 
Contact Officer:  Judith Baker, Planning Committee Co-ordinator,  

Email: builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk 

mailto:builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk


 

 
3 
 





 

 
5 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 18th July 

18:00-18:55 
 

Present at the meeting 
 
 
Councillor Garth Barnes (Chair) 
Councillor Paul Baker (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Diggory Seacome 
Councillor Victoria Atherstone 
Councillor Bernard Fisher 
Councillor Dilys Barrell 
 

 
Councillor Karl Hobley 
Councillor Tony Oliver 
Councillor Simon Wheeler 
Councillor John Payne 
Councillor Rowena Hay 
Councillor Mike Collins  
Councillor Louis Savage (Reserve)  
Councillor Roger Whyborn (Reserve)  

Officers in attendance  
 
Gary Dickens, Planning Officer 
Nick Jonathan, Solicitor 
David Oakhill, Head of Planning 
Michelle Payne, Senior Planning Officer 
 
1. Apologies  

Apologies were received from Councillor McCloskey, Councillor Cooke and 
Councillor Hegenbarth. Councillor Savage and Councillor Whyborn were in 
attendance as substitutes.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest  

There were none.  

 
3. Declarations of independent site visits  

Councillor Seacome and Councillor Fisher had both visited 35 Libertus Road.   

 
4. Public Questions  

There were none.  

 
5. Minutes of last meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on the 20th June 2019 were signed and approved as 
a correct record.  

 
6. Applications 
 
7. 19/00213/FUL Balcarras School, East End Road, Charlton Kings, 

Cheltenham, Gloucestershire  
 
Officer introduction 

MP introduced the application, she advised that the application was seeking planning 
permission for the installation of a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) comprising 4 
courts, complete with 3m high twin wire fencing, and floodlighting to 2 of the courts.  

Page 7
Agenda Item 5



2 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 
 
 

 

She explained that the application was before the planning committee at the request 
of Councillor McCloskey, and was also the subject of an objection from the Parish 
Council.  

Member Debate  

 

DB: Noted that in the Parish Council submission they had suggested that the lighting 

be fitted with a time clock so as to prevent lighting being left on through the night. 

She queried whether a decision had been made on this. She also questioned 

whether the cumulative lighting effect had been considered by environmental health.  

 

TO: Given the residents concerns he questioned whether it would be possible to 

condition the use of the 2 pitches nearest to residents so that they could not be used 

for team sports i.e. basketball as this would cause more disturbance to residents.   

 

JP: Noted that Sport England had requested a management and maintenance 

scheme be put in place before the courts were brought in to use. He questioned who 

had oversight of this plan and how would it be monitored.  

 

VA: Noted that one of the residents who backs on to court suggested that the court 
should be turned 90 degrees in order to maintain a reasonable separation between 
the MUGAs and the residents of Willow Road, she questioned whether this had been 
considered.  
 

MP in response: 

- She advised that they hadn’t imposed a condition regarding the time clock, 

however, if residents were experiencing issues with the lighting they could report 

this to the council and it would be dealt with through enforcement action.   

- With regards to the cumulative effect of the lighting, she explained that this had 

been dealt with by environmental health who had advised that the lux levels on 

neighbouring properties would still be a zero value because of the nature of flood 

lighting.   

- She highlighted that it would not be in there remit to restrict the particular sports 

played on the pitches, however, it was likely that the courts furthest from the 

residents would be used in the first instance.  As part of the community use 

agreement they could stipulate that the 2 courts closest to residents be used as a 

last resort.   

- Sports England had requested that they be consulted on the community use 

agreement and the maintenance plan and so it would be devised in consultation 

with them. 

- They hadn’t specified that the court be turned 90 degrees as this would eat in to 

the existing playing facilities, if turned round it would also be feasible for flood 

lighting on all 4 courts which would intensify the lighting issue. DO reiterated that 

if it were to be flipped 90 degrees the piece of land would not be fit for purpose. 

- She confirmed that only the 2 courts to the North East were flood lit. 

 

MC: Sympathised with residents whose properties abutted the area, however, noted 

that other areas within the school already abutted residential properties.  

He felt that the suggestions put forward by Sports England were extremely positive 

and agreed that flipping the courts 90 degrees wouldn’t work. 

Page 8



 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 3 
 
 

 

 

Vote of officer recommendation to permit 

 
13 For 

0 Against 

1 Abstention  

 

PERMIT 

 
8. 19/01044/COU Darleydale 35 Libertus Road Cheltenham 
  
Officer introduction 

GD introduced the application, he informed the committee that the site had been used as a 
privately owned care home since the late 1980s offering residential care for up to 13 
individuals and the applicant was seeking permission to enable the property to be used as a 
13 bed house in multiple occupancy (HMO). He highlighted that the application was for 
generic use and therefore the end use may vary.  

He explained that the application was at planning committee at the request of Cllr Holliday 
due to level of concern amongst neighbouring residents.  

Councillor Holliday speaking in objection,  

 

Was in attendance to support the residents of St Marks who were concerned that the change 

of use would have a detrimental effect on the neighbourhood with regards to the increased 

vehicles, parking issues, noise disturbances and highways safety. She highlighted that 

nearby residents had experienced anti social behaviour from 22 Libertus Road which was 

also an HMO and so had concerns that the same problems would be experienced at number 

35.  

 

With regards to the comments from the joint waste team, she felt it wise to have an area that 

restricts parking to allow crews to pull up safely and empty the bins, however, felt that this 

would exacerbate the parking problems. She questioned the highway’s officers comments 

that there were 48 available parking spaces within a 200 metre radius of the proposed 

development site and noted that on street parking was residents only after 8pm. She 

highlighted that current residents already had issues with parking and were often forced to 

park on adjacent roads. In her opinion, there appeared to be mixed messages regarding the 

future tenants and the exact number of occupants. She also sought further clarification on 

the highways issues and felt that the highways officers need to  revisit the site to determine 

the number of on-street parking spaces over a longer period of time. She suggested that the 

committee refuse the application or at least defer until answers were sought to residents 

questions.  

 

Member debate 

 

RW: Had significant concerns about the application, particularly with regards to how narrow 

the street was and the fact that parking in this area was already heavily restricted due to the 

recent scheme introduced in an attempt to control car parking around train station. He felt 

that the scheme would inevitably result in more parking on the road as the parking provisions 

were insufficient for the number of residents expected.  He agreed with Councillor Holliday 

Page 9



4 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 
 
 

 

that more work was required to demonstrate that parking wasn’t going to be a significant 

problem.   

 

DS: Queried when a HMO becomes a block of flats and what the difference was between 

them.   

 

BF: Had concerns that they would have no control over whether 13 people actually lived in 

the HMO. He questioned whether they could limit the number of people who resided there.  

 

MC:  He noted that there were 2 parking spaces close to the refuse store and questioned 

whether residents and the refuse collectors would easily be able to access the store.  He 

acknowledged that they could not add weight to what the future use of the HMO may be.  

 

VA: Questioned the type of people who may be living in the property, she highlighted that 

HMO’s worked extremely well in other countries, however, she had concerns about anti 

social behaviour and questioned whether a cap could be put on the number of students 

living in the property.   

 

DB: Questioned whether officers had anymore clarity on the highways safety issues raised 

by a number of residents.  She further questioned whether the    

refuse vehicle would have to drive in to get the bins and had concerns that 1 bathroom 

between 4 bedrooms could be fraught at times.   

 

JP: Had concerns as to whether there were current residents in the home and whether 

appropriate action had been taken to relocate them. Also had concerns about the lack of 

clarity over the number of people that could be residing in the property and the potential 

adverse impact this could have on the local community.  

 

KH:  Thought that it was an attractive property that added to the street scene and was 

pleased that a developer wished to retain it, something he felt that the council should 

encourage. He appreciated the issues that were sometimes associated with HMO’s, 

however reasoned that if the care home was no longer a viable business option they should 

support the change of use. He disagreed with the earlier suggestion of deferral and felt that 

they had the information they needed before them in order to make a decision.  

 

SW: Noted that there was an area to the North of the site that could potentially be used for 

parking. He disagreed with the comments made by the highways authority and he 

questioned whether there was adequate enough parking for residents, he was unhappy to 

support the scheme if it exacerbated the parking problem on the highway.  

 

The Gloucestershire County Council’s Highways Officer in attendance made the following 

comments:  

- The existing use for the property was a care home and the conversion to a HMO would 

actually reduce the parking pressures during the day as previously they had a number of 

staff and visitors coming and going throughout the day.  

- From experience of previous HMO applications, car ownership was typically lower, 

similarly, the property benefits from ease of access by foot, cycle and public transport to 

all amenities and services within the town centre and so they would anticipate fewer 

residents with cars. He reiterated that parking was available on site and that lockable 

Page 10



 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 5 
 
 

 

gates were being installed so that tenants were able to park bicycles and motorcycles 

securely. 

- He explained that a night time survey conducted by the applicant had identified that 

parking pressures would increase, however, the increase was not considered to be 

extreme. The Highways Authority had therefore concluded that the additional demand 

would not adversely impact the local area.  

- With regards to refuse collection, they had no reason to raise any highways safety 

concerns on this matter.  

 

GD in response:  

- With regards to the difference between a HMO and a flat, he advised that a  HMO is 

when a property has shared facilities i.e. a communal lounge and living  – change to 

kitchen. When a property is self contained that’s when it becomes an independent 

residential dwelling.  

- The application is for a 13 bed HMO, if more people were living there then they would 

be in breach of their planning and licensing conditions.  

- With regards to the relocation of residents he was of the understanding that  the 

business had been winding down for a period of time.  

- They were unable to condition the demographic of the people living within the property.  

- It had been suggested that once the development was complete there could be 

someone on site to manage it if the intended end user is as suggested. 

 

PB: Whilst he understood residents concerns, he felt it was imperative that all types of 

accommodation was provided across the town. He felt it would be a good use for the 

building.   

 

MC:  Thought it was a suitable location for such a property, however, they would need to be 

mindful of the issues caused by too many HMO’s in the future. 

 

BF: Was assured by the officers comments that it was only permitted for 13 residents, 

however, questioned how this would be monitored. He acknowledged the problem many 

people faced as they could not afford to rent a flat and so a HMO provided a suitable 

alternative.  

 

GD in response:  

- In terms of policing the number of residents it would be more a case for the licencing 

enforcement team and would be controlled if they had complaints from nearby residents 

or others residing in the property. He highlighted that the rooms were a certain size  and 

so this restricted how many beds you could physically get in.   

 

VA:  Support HMOs as Cheltenham needs more affordable housing, however, she was 

aware of the problems caused by numerous HMO’s in St Peters including dangerous 

parking, recycling not being taken out and furniture being dumped outside. She questioned 

what measures could be put in place to prevent this.  

 

MC: Felt it was impractical to determine the number of people allowed in the HMO’s as 

people often had temporary guests i.e. friends and family members staying with them.   

 

Page 11



6 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 
 
 

 

GD in response: They would be unable to enforce things such as ensuring that the 

recycling was taken out, however, issues such as dangerous parking would be dealt with by 

the police.  

 

Vote on officer recommendation to permit 

 

11 in favour 

3 Against  

0 Abstentions  

 

PERMIT  

 

 
8. 19/01110/LBC Cheltenham Borough Council, Municipal Offices, The 

Promenade  
 
Officer introduction 

DO introduced the application, he informed the committee that the proposed works were for 

four wireless receivers/transmitter boxes which were to be affixed to the exterior rear 

elevation of the lift shaft on the roof of the Municipal Offices. He explained that the boxes 

were 5 x 7 metres long and 2 inches deep.  

 

Vote of officer recommendation to permit 

 
13 For (unanimous)  

 

PERMIT  

 
9. Any other items the Chairman determines urgent and requires a 

decision 
 
10. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT INFORMATION  
 

RESOLVED THAT  

In accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the remaining agenda items as it is likely that, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are 
present there will be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 and 5, 
Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local Government Act 1972, namely: 

 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

 

Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

 
11. Exempt Minutes  
 

Page 12



 Planning Committee (18.7.19) 7 
 
 

 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 20th June 2019 were signed and 
approved as a correct record. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 19/01141/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes 

DATE REGISTERED: 21st June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 16th August 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 21st June 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT:  

WARD: Park PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Neil Otter 

AGENT:  

LOCATION: 2 Bethesda Street, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Erection of a new dwelling to the rear of 2 Bethesda Street 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 

  

 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 15
Agenda Item 6a



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site relates to land at the rear of 2 Bethesda Street. The site is located 
within Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area and within the Suffolk’s Character Area. 

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the erection of a new dwelling to the rear 
of the existing building. 

1.3 The application is at planning committee at the request of Councillor Harman who has 
called the application to committee on behalf of concerned local residents. 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
Conservation Area 
Principal Urban Area 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
18/00738/PREAPP      18th April 2018     CLO 
New dwelling 
 
19/00494/PREAPP      27th March 2019     CLO 
Proposed new dwelling 
 
17/02482/FUL      2nd February 2018     PER 
Construction of single storey rear extension to kitchen with lantern roof and bi-fold doors 
 
18/00214/FUL      26th March 2018     PER 
Installation of two rear dormer windows 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 2 Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4 Decision-making 
Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 
Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities 
Section 11 Making effective use of land 
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places  
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 3 Sustainable environment  
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
BE 2 Residential character in conservation areas  
BE 6 Back lanes in conservation areas  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SP1 The Need for New Development 
SP2 Distribution of New Development 
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD8 Historic Environment 

Page 16



SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SD10 Residential Development 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 
INF1 Transport Network 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Development on garden land and infill sites in Cheltenham (2009) 
Central conservation area: The Suffolks Character Area and Management Plan (July 2008) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records 
3rd July 2019  
Report available to view.  
 
 
Cheltenham Civic Society 
26th June 2019  
This is a full planning application, so why has the applicant submitted conceptual drawings? 
The Forum has no objection to the infill development on Chapel Lane. (The applicant's 
inclusion of the existing street scene on their application is much appreciated, this being 
frequently omitted from other similar applications). 
 
The third storey is unacceptable in a street scene of 2-storey cottages and in relation to 2 
Bethesda Street. The street elevation with 3 "front doors" and a window extending to 
ground level is very odd and not in keeping with the area. 
 
 
Building Control 
13th June 2019 
The proposed works require Building Regulations approval. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
Number of letters sent 25 

Total comments received 13 

Number of objections 11 

Number of supporting 0 

General comment 2 

 
5.1 25 letters were sent to neighbours on 2 separate occasions, in addition, a site notice was 

displayed and an advert was published in the Gloucestershire Echo. 11 representations 
were received. 

5.2 The objections have been summarised but are not limited to the following: 

 Principle 

 Over development 

 Parking 

 Loss of garden/amenity space 

 Loss of light 

Page 17



 Loss of privacy 

 Access issues 

 Construction issues 

 Impact on adjacent church hall 

 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues  

6.2 The main considerations of this application are principle, design, impact on neighbouring 
amenity and impact on the Conservation Area. 

6.3 The site and its context  

6.4 The application site currently consists of an existing mid-terraced property that has a 
frontage on to Bethesda Street, the property has recently been extended with a single 
storey rear extension and has a private rear garden beyond. In addition, there is an area 
of hard standing beyond the boundary fence which still forms the curtilage of the existing 
building but is open to Chapel Lane, this area of land is the subject of this planning 
application. 

6.5 The proposed development site sits between two existing two storey dwellings which are 
of a traditional design and have frontages onto Chapel Lane, these existing properties sit 
at the back edge of the carriageway edge. Directly opposite the site on the other side of 
Chapel Lane is the Bethesda Methodist Church Hall. Further east on Chapel Lane, there 
are a further 3 dwellings on the south side of Chapel Lane, one traditional in style and 
form and two modern flat roof dwellings, these were recently constructed in the rear 
gardens of number 4 and 5 Bethesda Street following the granting of planning permission. 
(Application numbers 12/01450/FUL and 12/00515/FUL). 

6.6 Pre-application advice  

6.7 This application follows the submission of two formal pre-application submissions where 
officers provided a response on the acceptability of a new dwelling on this site. Officer’s 
response concluded that whilst the principle of a new dwelling was likely to be acceptable, 
the proposed scale, design and form that was seen at pre-application stage was unlikely 
to be acceptable and revisions would be necessary. 

6.8 Following on from officer’s advice, changes have been made to the proposed scheme and 
a revised proposal is being considered within this application. 

6.9 Principle  

6.10 The application site is located within a built up area of Cheltenham, surrounded 
predominantly by residential dwellings, the proposal to erect a new dwelling on this site 
would therefore accord with JCS policy SD10. 

6.11 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
In this instance, as Cheltenham cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land 
supply, paragraph 11 d) of the NPPF is applicable to this application, this reads ‘where 
there are no relevant development plans, or the policies which are most important for 
determining the application are out of date, permission should be granted unless: i) the 
application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

Page 18



importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or ii) any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.’  

6.12 In this instance the protected area is a designated heritage asset which is the surrounding 
conservation area; therefore whilst the principle of a new dwelling on this site is 
considered to be acceptable, the main considerations are whether any identified harm will 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  

6.13 Design, layout and impact on surroundings   

6.14 The proposed development is to erect a two storey dwelling with living accommodation 
within the roof. Officers acknowledge that the site is extremely limited in size and the 
proposed dwelling will not benefit from any private amenity space. The dwelling has a 
modest footprint measuring approximately 6 metres wide by 6 metres deep and has a 
similar design, form and appearance to that of the adjacent dwelling (1 Chapel Lane). The 
eaves and ridge height of the building match that of the adjacent property, as do the front 
elevation design details such as the windows and doors. The proposed materials are to 
match that of 1 Chapel Lane which is considered to be wholly appropriate and acceptable. 
As proposed, the new dwelling and adjacent property will read as a pair of semi-detached 
properties rather than standalone dwellings. 

6.15 The addition of a dormers to this property will provide further living accommodation within 
the roof space, whilst this is not a common feature in the local area planning permission 
was granted for two rear dormers on the existing property of 2 Bethesda Street 
(18/00214/FUL). The front elevation dormer is considered to be of an appropriate scale, 
form and design and is considered to be acceptable. 

6.16 The design of the rear elevation is very different to the front, due to the close proximity of 
neighbouring development windows to the rear are high level and do not reflect the 
traditional design of the front elevation windows. In addition, a further dormer is provided 
on the rear roof slope. Officers consider that the rear elevation is much less sensitive than 
the front elevation and the more modern approach is considered to be appropriate. 

6.17 The site is within a sensitive location within Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area and 
is in close proximity of the Grade II listed Church, careful consideration has been given to 
the impact of the proposed development on the design and character of the surrounding 
conservation area and the setting of the listed building. The proposal has been discussed 
with the council’s conservation officers, no objection has been raised, it is not considered 
that the development would result in any unacceptable harm to the setting of the listed 
church, nor would it result in a negative impact on the character of the area. The 
conservation team are supportive of infill development on this site and consider that 
development which will result in the loss of the poor quality hard surfaced area will 
improve the aesthetics of the area. 

6.18 The Civic Society has commented on the application, points regarding the front elevation 
detailing has been addressed through the submission of revised plans. A third storey is 
still included within the plans however the position of the front dormer has been amended 
and the roof light has been reduced in size. 

6.19 Officers consider that the proposed dwelling is of an appropriate scale and form, reflecting 
that of the immediate property and is not considered to result in any unacceptable harm to 
the design or character of the surroundings. The proposal is therefore considered to be 
compliant with local plan policy CP7, and adopted JCS policies SD4 and SD8. 

6.20 The proposed dwelling will reflect the layout and development patterns of the immediate 
locality, is considered to be of an appropriate built form that is in keeping with its 
surroundings and is a design that is of an appropriate style to sit comfortably in its 

Page 19



surroundings. This accords with the advice and guidance set out within Cheltenham’s 
Development on garden land and infill sites SPD. 

6.21 Impact on neighbouring amenity 

6.22 Concerns have been raised by local residents regarding the impact of the proposed 
development; these concerns include a loss of light and a loss of privacy to the 
surrounding properties and the church hall. 

6.23 The proposed new dwelling is not as deep as the dwellings located either side of it, 
therefore in terms of light these properties will not be affected. Officers note a small 
window located in the side elevation of number 3 Chapel Lane, however this is confirmed 
by the owner as being a bathroom window and is therefore not afforded protection in 
terms of light. In terms of impact on the properties of 1 and 3 Bethesda Street, officers 
acknowledge that these properties currently appreciate a gap to the rear of the application 
site towards Chapel Lane, the infilling of this gap will therefore have an impact in terms of 
outlook. The development is however considered to be a sufficient distance away from 
these properties and would not result in any overbearing impact or unacceptable loss of 
light. In addition the relationship between the proposed new dwelling and the existing 
properties on Bethesda Street is no different to that of the neighbouring sites. 

6.24 In terms of privacy, the rear elevation windows of the new dwelling are all detailed as 
being high level and obscurely glazed which appropriately protects the privacy of the 
neighbouring land users; a condition has been suggested to ensure the rear windows are 
maintained as such. 

6.25 The gable end of the church hall which faces the development site includes 3 vertical 
windows, concerns have been raised by local residents and users of the hall about a 
potential loss of light to these windows and a potential loss of privacy. When considering 
loss of light to neighbouring buildings, officers apply the tests set out in the guide ‘Site 
layout: Planning for daylight and sunlight’ by Paul Littlefair. The light test is usually applied 
to residential uses, however at paragraph 2.2.2 (pg7) it states other uses that can be 
protected, these are listed as schools, hospitals, hotels/hostels, small workshops and 
some offices. In this instance the adjacent church hall does not fall within those specified 
and therefore is not afforded the same level of protection as a residential property. 
Officers acknowledge that the proposal will impact light to the church hall, however, given 
that these are the only windows serving the large space, It is unlikely that activities 
currently take place without the use of artificial lighting. 

6.26 With regards to a loss of privacy to the church hall, policy CP4 seeks to protect residents 
of habitable spaces, the church hall is a social space used by groups for short periods of 
times, is not considered to be a residential or habitable space and therefore is not 
afforded the same protection as a residential property. 

6.27 Whilst officers duly note all the concerns raised, it is not considered in this instance that 
the proposal will result in any unacceptable loss of light, loss of privacy or overbearing 
impact on any neighbouring residential land user and is therefore considered to be 
complaint with local plan policy CP4 and JCS policy SD14. 

6.28 Access and highway issues  

6.29 Chapel Lane is an un-adopted Highway, it is narrow in width measuring approximately 3 
metres, the lane currently provides vehicle access to other residential properties located 
on Chapel Lane. Local residents have raised concerns regarding use of the lane for a new 
dwelling, parking issues and construction management issues if the development is to go 
ahead. 

Page 20



6.30 The proposal does not include the provision of off street parking, however the site is 
located within a highly sustainable location, with various local amenities and the nearby 
shopping area of Bath Road within a short walking distance from the site.  

6.31 As no parking is being proposed, there will be no intensified use of Chapel Lane or the 
junctions onto Great Norwood Street and Commercial Street; therefore there will be no 
highway safety implications.  

6.32 The proposed new dwelling does not have any private amenity space; however provision 
has been made for a bike store which is considered to be acceptable. 

6.33 The proposal of a new dwelling on this site is not considered to result in any highway 
safety implications and given its sustainable location is considered to be acceptable on 
access, parking and highway safety grounds.  

6.34 Officers duly note the concerns raised by local residents regarding access to the site for 
the construction of the proposed new dwelling. As noted above, the lane to the rear is 
narrow and therefore access by construction vehicles could be difficult, officers have 
therefore suggested a condition for a ‘construction management plan’ to be submitted 
prior to the commencement of the development. 

6.35 Other considerations  

6.36 Whilst records show that important species or habitats have been sighted on or near the 
application site in the past, it is not considered that the proposed development will have 
any impact on these species. 
 
 

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 Whilst officers appreciate the constraints of this small site and the sensitivity of its 
location, having considered the conclusions for each of the topic areas above which 
include principle, design, layout, impact on surroundings, impact on neighbouring amenity, 
highway safety and access, the harm is not considered to significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits of providing a further dwelling. 

7.2 Officer recommendation is therefore to permit the application, subject to the conditions set 
out below: 

 

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES 
 
 1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 

Page 21



3 All windows in the front elevation of the approved development shall comprise sliding 
sash windows and set in minimum reveals of 100mm and maintained as such 
thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to 
Policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (adopted 2006). 
 

 4 Prior to first occupation of the development, refuse, recycling and bicycle storage 
facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved plans and shall be retained 
as such thereafter. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of sustainable waste management and recycling, having 

regard to Policy W36 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 
 
 5 Prior to the commencement of development, including any works of demolition or site 

clearance, a Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  
 The approved method statement shall be adhered to throughout the development 

process and shall, where necessary: 
i) specify the type and number of vehicles expected during the construction of the 

development; 
ii) allocate space for the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors; 
iii) allocate space for the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iv) allocate space for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 
v) specify the intended hours of construction;  
vi) specify measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during construction; 
vii) provide for wheel washing facilities; and 
viii) specify the access points to be used and maintained during the construction phase. 

  
 Reason: To minimise disruption on the public highway and to adjacent land users, and 

accommodate the efficient delivery of goods and supplies during the course of the 
construction works, having regard to adopted policy INF1 of the Joint Core Strategy 
(2017). Approval is required upfront because without proper mitigation the works could 
have an unacceptable highway impact during construction. 

 
 6 Notwithstanding the approved plans, the entrance door shall at all times be hung so that 

it only opens inwards into the building. 
  
 Reason: To ensure that the highway is not obstructed in the interests of highway safety, 

having regard to adopted policy INF1 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 
 
 7 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that 
order), the rear elevation windows shall at all times be glazed with obscure glass to at 
least Pilkington Level 3 (or equivalent) and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the 
window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above floor level of the room 
that the window serves.   

  
 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties, having regard to saved 

policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy SD14 of 
the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 8 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that 
order with or without modification), no extensions, garages, sheds, outbuildings, walls, 

Page 22



fences or other built structures of any kind (other than those forming part of the 
development hereby permitted) shall be erected without express planning permission. 

  
 Reason:  Any further extension or alteration requires further consideration to safeguard 

the amenities of the area, having regard to saved policies CP4 and CP7 of the 
Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policies SD4 and SD14 of the 
Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
  

INFORMATIVES 
 
 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development.  

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

  
 In this instance, the authority sought revisions to address design concerns;  following 

these negotiations, the application now constitutes sustainable development and has 
therefore been approved in a timely manner. 

 
 2 Please be advised that Chapel Lane, to the rear of the site should be kept clear of 

delivery and construction vehicles and that materials should be stored off the highway. 
 
   
 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPLICATION NO: 19/01141/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes 

DATE REGISTERED: 21st June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 16th August 2019 

WARD: Park PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Neil Otter 

LOCATION: 2 Bethesda Street, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Erection of a new dwelling to the rear of 2 Bethesda Street 

 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 
Number of contributors  13 
Number of objections  11 
Number of representations 2 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

Bethesda Hall 
Chapel Lane 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AR 
 

 

Comments: 22nd July 2019 
On behalf of 45th Cheltenham (Bethesda) Scout Group, I am writing to object to the proposed 
dwelling at the rear of 2 Bethesda Street, which would front onto Chapel Lane directly opposite 
the south end of Bethesda Church Hall.  
 
As regular users of Bethesda Church Hall, our main concern with this proposed dwelling is the 
loss of privacy due to the 1st and 2nd floor windows having direct line of sight into the Hall. This 
would be a serious safeguarding concern for our members, as all the activities run by our 
sections in the main hall, who are aged between 6 and 14 years, could be viewed from these 
windows! This would also apply to the numerous other users of the Hall, which includes children 
of play group age! 
 
Having read through all the planning documents and the concerns and objection already lodged 
against this development, I totally agree that it will also have a detrimental affect on the 
immediate surrounding area. In particular the blocking of the natural sunlight into the Hall, 
causing it to be in permanent shadow, the loss of a parking space plus additional cars for the 
proposed new dwelling, thus adding to the already congested parking and the further erosion of 
Chapel lane, which is already in a bad state of repair.  
 
On behalf of the Scout Group, I seriously hope that due consideration is taken in account of the 
real concern over this unnecessary development, especially in term of the safeguarding of our 
members and the detriment to the local community. 
 
   

Central Buildings, Oldham Street 
Manchester 
M1 1JQ 
 

 

Comments: 7th August 2019 

Page 25



I write on behalf of the Methodist Church with reference to application no. 19/01141/FUL. I write 
in my capacity as the Connexional Conservation Officer whose primary role is to provide advice 
and guidance to church trustees on matters relating to the historic environment.  
 
We have been notified of the application to erect a new dwelling to the rear of 2 Bethesda Street. 
Which is a site opposite to and facing onto the church hall. A building which forms part of the 
Bethesda Methodist Church suite of buildings, and is covered by the grade II listed. 
Consequently, there is a statutory duty to preserve its setting. The site is also within the 
Conservation Area, the appraisal of which makes special reference to the positive contribution 
made by the Methodist Church. The church and former Sunday school has evidential, historic, 
and aesthetic value but also has considerable community value as it provides spiritual and 
community outreach to those who wish to use it. 
 
The development site is largely undeveloped. There are some historic buildings evident from 
older maps but these appear to be ancillary to the buildings on Union Street (now Bethesda 
Street). The setting of the hall has therefore been relatively open compared to other buildings 
along Chapel Lane and this has permitted considerable light levels into the hall from this angle. 
This will certainly be affected by the infilling and development of this space. The impact of this 
needs to be carefully considered as reduced light levels may reduce the usability of this hall and 
may result in the need for alterations to it - both of which will impact on its community and 
architectural value.  
 
The revised drawings show a design that is wholly unacceptable for this sensitive location, and 
ignores its local context. The scale of the other houses on Chapel Lane is much smaller, having a 
more cottage and simple two-bay appearance. Furthermore, the design in terms of appearance is 
also at odds with the buildings in the vicinity, and includes dormers and Velux windows, as well 
as windows on the rear which are of an unusual proportion. The amount of accommodation 
clearly needs to be reduced if the principle of development is acceptable here. 
 
Overall, we object to the proposed development as we believe this will cause harm to the 
character and appearance of the conservation area, and to the setting of the listed building. We 
believe that this harm will not be outweighed by public benefits, and will indeed affect, negatively 
the public benefits currently offered by the church. 
 
   

13 Commercial Street 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AU 
 

 

Comments: 2nd July 2019 
We wish to object to the above proposal on the following grounds. 
 
This is yet another example of garden grabbing in this area - new-builds squeezed into tiny 
gardens - to the detriment of existing properties, in this case to the existing house (2 Bethesda 
Street): to neighbouring properties, including Bethesda Church and Numbers 1 and 3 Chapel 
Lane; to the lane itself and the surrounding area. 
 
The Suffolks (not Tivoli as stated on the application form) is an area of mainly 2 storey artisan 
buildings with a character all of its own. Its value has obviously been recognised by the Council 
as it is part of the Central Conservation Area. In recent years, this has been under threat because 
of some unfortunate developments, some in Chapel Lane itself. 
 
It is also in Zone 8 as far as Residents' Parking is concerned. The streets here are narrow and 
the number of car-owning residents far outweighs the space available. The result is that we pay 
for the facility but often are forced to park several streets away as we did before charges were 
introduced. 

Page 26



 
The proposed development would mean the loss of a parking space in the garden of 2 Bethesda 
Street and the additional demand for street parking by the future residents of the proposed new 
build, at least 3 spaces in all. This is not a one-off. Over the last 10 years demand for parking 
spaces has risen exponentially as new houses have been squeezed into small spaces in the 
area. The local roads have become increasingly difficult to navigate. 
 
Loss of gardens and amenity space also has an effect on wildlife and the environment and should 
be a factor in all Council decisions.  
 
I note that the Civic society has concerns about the proposal, and the fact that it is a Full 
Application supported by a conceptual design and we would agree that this is inappropriate and 
with the other objections which they have made. We do object though to the infill as there would 
be a negative impact on numbers 1 and 3 Chapel Lane in terms of retaining a detached status, 
access to side walls for maintenance and other purposes; loss of light and potential for noise.  
 
Loss of light would also be a major detrimental factor for the Church, which is a social centre for 
many groups and individuals and can in no way be described as a commercial building.  
 
We do find the constant demand for development in the neighbourhood is having a detrimental 
effect on its friendly and communal nature. 
 
In summary, our main points are 
 
1 Overdevelopment in this narrow lane and this space-restricted neighbourhood. 
 
2 Loss of amenity and open space. 
 
3 Negative effect on the neighbouring properties including the Church as detailed above.  
 
4 Pressure on parking in already overcrowded streets.  
 
5 Loss of light to neighbouring properties and the Church. 
 
   

2 Russell Place 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 9HR 
 

 

Comments: 29th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
   

2 Chapel Lane 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AR 

 

 
Comments: 24th June 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
Comments: 15th July 2019 
We object again to the above Application, as per contents of objection comment dated 
21/06/2019 [available to view in Documents tab]. We note revised floor plan and elevation 
drawings. However, points 1-8 of Comment 21st June 2019 still very much apply to this 
Application, also, additionally, the following is noted: 

Page 27



 
o    Scale, massing and elevation are still the same, removing light and privacy from the Hall and 
overshadowing, causing unacceptable harm. It will still be severely detrimental to the Character 
Area of the Suffolk's. The Hall and its past and present use, being witness to this. [ a drawing is in 
documents tab ].  
 
o    Revised "store" now combines both wheelie bin and a bike, it what can only be best 
described as aspiration, as the space is 0.79 mtrs deep and 1.68 mtrs long at best case, before 
there is any consideration for door frames, doors or opening thereof. It is too small for a cycle, 
unless it is dismantled and it is a dubious fit for a bin.  For both, it is not possible. So it would 
seem we are going to have more private property ending up in the public domain, such as 
PROWs. This Application does not provide any outside amenity space as was the case with the 
superseded drawings. 
 
o    There has been a very high turnover of occupants of Chapel Lane since 2011, so more recent 
arrivals make assumptions about the road that are not wholly correct. It is "not maintained at the 
public expense" due to it not being Adopted by the LA, so it is attributed "private" for that purpose 
only, however it is a Public Highway, not a private one. The Public have used it for likely in far 
excess of 150 years and it is, additionally, a public street. So any damage caused by construction 
and resultant harm to persons, private property or utility infrastructure, is very much a public issue 
and cannot be deferred to some non-existent entity. This expands on the points made in 7a and 
7b of our letter 21st June. 
 
Comments: 15th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
Comments: 8th August 2019 
It is noted there is a revision to the fenestration of the rear elevation of the proposed house, 
submitted 20th July. This does not change the fact it is too close to the main house. These are 
south facing windows. The size has been halved, so less natural light into the rear of the 
proposed new house. Assuming this latest revision is in some way seeking to mitigate privacy 
and overlooking harm to the proposed house, why is the Church Hall not given any 
consideration? 
 
We object again to the above Application because of the severe harm it will cause to the Church 
Hall due to overlooking, overshadowing and loss of light. The front elevation, height and massing 
is unchanged.  
 
The NPPF states that sustainable means ensuring that better lives for ourselves does not mean 
worse lives for future generations. The loss of light into the Hall and loss of privacy will mean 
worse conditions for the future users of the Hall. The Application compromises the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs [section 2 paragraph 7 of NPPF ]. The Hall, being a listed 
Heritage Asset, is an irreplaceable resource and should be conserved in a manner appropriate to 
its significance [ section 16 paragraph 184 of NPPF ] , the Application does not address the 
significance of this asset and its contribution to the quality of life of existing and future 
generations . 
 
Section 12 paragraph 130 of NPPF states "permission should be refused for development of poor 
design that does not improve character and quality of an area and how it functions".  The design 
does not preserve the light and privacy of the Hall, will thus denigrate its function and benefit, so 
being a poor design, contrary to SD4 of the JCS.  
 
Everyone living and working in the JCS area should have access to facilities that meet their 
everyday needs. Essential Social and Community Infrastructure includes, among other things, 
Community and Spiritual Centres and children's play and crèche facilities.  The proposed house 
will result in severe diminution of light and privacy to the Hall, compromising the well-being of 
present and future users of the Hall.  

Page 28



 
The proposed house will erode the appearance, character and distinctiveness of the Historic 
Environment due to the overshadowing; meaning the Southern aspect of the Hall will no longer 
be illuminated directly by the sun, contrary to SD8 of JCS.  
 
The proposal is also contrary to SD14 of JCS for the following reasons:  
 
1.       This proposal will create or exacerbate conditions that will adversely impact on human 
health. The user groups of the Hall are well established and adapted to the positive environment 
presently in the Hall  and do require light, privacy, consideration and respect. 
 
2.       The Development will cause unacceptable harm to the local amenity including the amenity 
of neighbouring occupants of the Hall. 
 
   

Bethesda Hall 
Chapel Lane 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AR 
 

 

Comments: 19th July 2019 
The church hall which is directly opposite the proposed building is used by many community 
groups  every day of the week. 
 
As a volunteer who helps run a toddler group and a lunch club and welcome club at Bethesda 
Methodist Church, I am writing to object to the above proposal. 
 
Having discussed it with about 30 adults who regularly attend with their children and our group of 
28 senior citizens, there was a very clear deep concern about the impact the proposed building 
will have on the amount of daylight lost.  
 
Some people have also raised concerns over the lack of privacy that will prevail, as the proposed 
windows will look directly into the hall. 
 
   

15 Commercial Street 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AU 
 

 

Comments: 8th July 2019 
Chapel Lane is a quiet unmade road and until recently the houses that fronted on to it had 
parking in front or at the side. Houses that fronted onto Bethesda Street had rear 
garages/parking/gardens. Despite the difficulties of parking in this area permission has been 
granted in the past for the replacement of garages with design inappropriate dwellings and 
obviously without any parking. This is another such application and reflects the gradual 
degradation of this unique area of Cheltenham by ugly infilling and vehicular pressure, despite its 
status as a Conservation Area.  
 
This area is not obviously beautiful like Montpellier, Tivoli or Lansdown but has charm and 
vibrancy and deserves better treatment than it has received to date, namely the unthinking 
disregard of the importance of retaining outside space for the houses that have been here for so 
long. If it is truly a conservation area it should not preclude innovation and development however 
a sense of space is as worthy of conservation as a beautiful building. 
 

Page 29



Outdoor spaces also provide useful wildlife corridors necessary for healthy gardens and 
ultimately healthy town-dwelling people. 
 
Having finally been able to look at the conceptual plans the house appears large in relation to the 
other dwellings in the lane with three storeys and has a lot of 'front doors'. It seems clear that it 
will block light for those opposite (it is a very narrow lane) and most particularly into the old hall 
opposite. 
 
   

5 Old School Court 
Great Norwood Street 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2BG 
 

 

Comments: 13th June 2019 
Whilst I have no objection in principle I am concerned about yet another building being erected 
without parking facility. The area is already overcrowded with vehicles and to build without this in 
mind is short-sighted. Perhaps a designated space could be agreed in the Bath Road car park 
and included in the deeds of the new property? 
 
   

Bethesda Methodist Church 
Great Norwood Street 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AP 
 

 

Comments: 15th July 2019 
I write to express concerns on behalf of the Church Council and members of Bethesda Church 
concerning the proposed dwelling and why we would wish to speak at the Planning hearing 
 
The dwelling would be directly opposite across a narrow lane 10 feet wide, south of the main 
windows of Bethesda Church Hall. These windows provide nearly all the light into the Hall. (There 
is a small East window at the other end of the Hall but it is overshadowed by an old building and 
provides little light.) We are greatly concerned that the proposed dwelling would take away much 
of this light because of its position, height, and close proximity on the south side. 
 
This would seriously affect the amenity, by greatly reducing the light in the hall, for hundreds of 
users in a typical week. 
 
 All 1st and 2nd floor windows of the proposed house will look directly into the hall causing loss of 
privacy - and raising Child Protection issues. 
 
Bethesda is a busy 'Community' church providing facilities for many groups throughout the week. 
Since a major rebuild and refurbishment two years ago of parts of this Grade 2 listed building 
(which was highly commended by the Civic Trust) there has been an increase in daily community 
activities, and more are planned.   
 
Weekly activities in the hall include: 
 

 Lunch and Activity club for the elderly.    

 Toddlers and Mums groups (twice)      

 Activity and support group for Dementia sufferers/carers 

 Scouts, Guides, Cubs, Brownies, Beavers 

 Community Country Dancing 

 Community Bread making 

Page 30



 U3A choir 

 Cheltenham Community choir 

 Morning coffee and conversation 

 Social and fellowship gatherings 
 
These activities are not a commercial operation. The church wishes to serve the local community 
and so the Hall is provided free to most groups or at cost-covering rates. We believe there is no 
similar hall in the local community of Suffolks/Bath road. 
 
The Hall has enjoyed light from these south facing windows for over 150 years. Generations of 
church members and local community have enjoyed its activities. Following refurbishment of 
other parts of the building the hall windows are being prepared and painted this summer. A site 
visit by the Planning Committee to see the hall would probably best demonstrate the real 
concerns we have. 
 
Yours faithfully, on behalf of the church, 
 
   

Lamb Flag Cottage 
3 Chapel Lane 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AR 
 

 

Comments: 11th July 2019 
We have been unable to register online for make a comment on the planning application for 
19/01141/FUL 2 Bethesda Street New Dwelling. A receptionist at the council offices told us we 
could email instead to make a comment. See below: 
 
Neutral: 
 
Whilst we are not opposed to the building of the new dwelling at the back of 2 Bethesda Street, 
we have a few queries/considerations after looking through the proposed plans.  
 

 Would there be enough space between 3 Chapel Lane and the proposed dwelling for a 
ladder or side access in case work is needed to be carried out on the side or the side roof 
of number 3? 
 

 As Chapel Lane is a privately owned road, if there was any damage done to the road due to 
the proposed works, who would be responsible financially? 

 

 Would the proposed building works affect the foundations to our house (3 Chapel Lane) in 
any way, and if there was any damage to our property, as above, who would be 
responsible? 

 

 Unfortunately, the proposed dwelling would block out the light coming in from our side 
bathroom window on 3 Chapel Lane, which would be a shame as we do get quite a lot of 
sun through that window. 

 

 With regards to it being nearly attached to 1 Chapel Lane, just wanted to mention that our 
property (3 Chapel Lane) had a new property built right next to it a few years ago. There is 
a very small gap (5mm?) between 3 and 3a and we have been told that water collects in 
the gap and is likely the reason why we had damp problems with the wall in our hallway, 
which we had to get damp - proofed in 2015.  We just wanted to point that out as a 
consideration as i couldn't see what the gap will be between proposed dwelling and 
number 1 and wouldn't want this problem to occur for 1 Chapel Lane.  

 

Page 31



  
  1 Chapel Lane 

Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AR 
 

 

Comments: 20th June 2019 
Whilst I'm not against the development of the site as it is an eyesore, some revisions to the plans 
are required or need clarification. 
 
- Sufficient clearance between 1 Chapel Lane and the new build required to allow access to 

the owned walls, waste pipes, extractor vent and also maintain the detached status of 1 
Chapel Lane. 

 
- 2 Bethesda already encroached on the limited outdoor space of 1 Chapel Lane and the 

proposed new build will exacerbate this further as well as restrict light to the garden and rear 
of 1 Chapel Lane. 

 
 -    Access to rear of 1 Chapel lane for building maintenance needs to be maintained. 
 
 -    Noise reverberation off the new building in the newly formed enclosed space between  

properties will be a nuisance to all properties in the vicinity. 
 
Other concerns 
 

- Likely further road dilapidation of the unadopted Chapel Lane with building work. The road 
is already in extremely poor condition. 

- Risk to damage the foul sewer underground and new build restricts access of inspection 
chamber of the sewer. 

- Risk of damage to foundations and further damage to walls of 1 Chapel Lane with any 
excavations and building operations. 

- Another period of construction noise, dirt and disruption so soon after the last building work 
an issue as I often work from home. 

- Further strain on parking in the vicinity with additional residents in the area. 
 
  

1 Great Norwood Street 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2AW 
 

 

Comments: 17th July 2019 
Entirely agree with all comments/objection made 24 June and 15 July - additionally there is no 
safe vehicle access/egress to the intended site either from Gt Norwood St or from Commercial 
Street where there have been many accidents already. 
 
   

Wold's Edge, 
Station Road, 
Woodmancote, 
GL52 9HN 
 

 

Comments: 17th July 2019 
I write in support of the Church Council and members of Bethesda Church concerning their 
objection to proposed dwelling.  
 

Page 32



The new building  would be directly opposite across a narrow lane 10 feet wide, south of the main 
windows of Bethesda Church Hall. These windows provide nearly all the light into the Hall and 
has always done so. (There is a small East window at the other end of the Hall but it is 
overshadowed by an old building and provides little light.) As regular users of the hall, we  are 
greatly concerned that the proposed dwelling would take away much of this light because of its 
position, height, and close proximity on the south side. 
 
This would seriously affect the amenity for us and for pother users by greatly reducing the light in 
the hall. We meet in the afternoon and try not to use electric light more than absolutely necessary 
for cost and sustainability reasons. 
 
We have met in the hall for many years and greatly appreciate its availability and suitability 
especially since the recent splendid refurbishment: there is no similar hall in the local community 
of Suffolks/Bath road. 
 
 As the church representative wrote, a site visit by the Planning Committee to see the hall would 
probably best demonstrate the real concerns we all share. 
 
Yours faithfully, on behalf of the C&G National Trust Centre, 
 
Chairman, Lectures Committee 
 
 
  
 

 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



APPLICATION NO: 19/01230/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes 

DATE REGISTERED: 22nd June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 17th August 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 22nd June 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT: 12th July 2019 

WARD: College PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Sean Durkin 

AGENT: Cheltenham Drafting 

LOCATION: 151 Old Bath Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Erection of detached garage 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 

  

 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 45
Agenda Item 6b



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site relates to a detached dwelling located within a residential area on Old 
Bath Road.  

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the erection of a detached garage to the 
front of the existing dwelling.  

1.3 The application is at planning committee at the request of Councillor Sudbury on behalf of 
a local resident. The concerns relate to highway safety and impact on the character of the 
area.   

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
Principal Urban Area 
Smoke Control Order 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
17/02461/FUL      1st February 2018     PER 
To extend the dropped kerb at the driveway entrance 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 2 Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4 Decision-making 
Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities 
Section 11 Making effective use of land 
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places  
 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
GE 5 Protection and replacement of trees  
GE 6 Trees and development  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 
INF1 Transport Network 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
GCC Highways Planning Liaison Officer 
5th July 2019  
 

Page 46



Reference is made to the above application received on the 3rd July 2019. 
 
Recommendation: No objection. 
 
Statement of Due Regard 
Consideration has been given as to whether any inequality and community impact will be 
created by the transport and highway impacts of the proposed development. It is 
considered that no inequality is caused to those people who had previously utilised those 
sections of the existing transport network that are likely to be impacted on by the proposed 
development. 
 
It is considered that the following protected groups will not be affected by the transport 
impacts of the proposed development: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, 
other groups (such as long term unemployed), social-economically deprived groups, 
community cohesion, and human rights. 
 
 
Building Control 
5th July 2019 
No comment 
 
 
Tree Officer - 10th July 2019  
The Tree Section does not object to this application pending submission of further 
information. Please could foundation details which take account of any potential roots be 
submitted and agreed before determination. Please could the following Condition be added 
with any permissions given: 
 
No roots over 25mm to be severed 
Any works taking place in the root protection area shall be carried out by hand and no roots 
over 25mm to be severed without the advice of a qualified arboriculturalist or without written 
permission from the Local Planning Authority's Tree Officer.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the retained/protected tree(s) in accordance with Local Plan Policies 
GE5 and GE6 relating to the retention, protection and replacement of trees. 
Please could the following informative also be added with any permissions: 
 
Suggested Gutter Cover Informative 
It is strongly recommended that suitable leaf guards to cover guttering and down pipes are 
installed onto external rain drainage pipework so as to reduce the incidence of such 
blocked pipework as a result of tree related litter-fallen leaves, twigs, fruit etc 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Number of letters sent 4 

Total comments received 2 

Number of objections 2 

Number of supporting 0 

General comment 0 

 
5.1 4 letters were sent to neighbouring properties, 2 letters of objection have been received.  

5.2 The objections have been summarised but are not limited to the following: 

 Visual impact/ Visual amenity 

Page 47



 Traffic and highway safety 

 Impact on trees 

 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues  

6.2 The main considerations of this application are principle, design, impact on neighbouring 
amenity, impact on the street scene and impact on existing trees. 

6.3 The site and its context  

6.4 The application site consists of a detached two storey dwelling set back from the road with 
a large front garden/driveway. The site sits amongst a number of detached properties that 
vary in scale, from and design with frontages onto Old Bath Road.   

6.5 Typically the space between the highway and the properties in the immediate locality is 
used as private front gardens, driveways and parking areas. Front boundary treatments in 
the area are varied, some with low level brick walls and planting, others with higher level 
fencing and planting. 

6.6 Principle, design and layout  

6.7 The proposal is for a single storey pitched roof garage, measuring 5.6 metres in length, 
3.5 metres in width, with an overall ridge height of 3.6 metres. Access to the garage to be 
from within the site and not from Old Bath Road. Unlike the properties either side of the 
application site, the site is not sufficient in width to enable a new a garage to the side of 
the existing dwelling, therefore the proposal is for a garage in front of the building. 

6.8 As existing, there do not appear to be any detached garages built in the immediate 
locality. Generally garages in front of dwellings can be considered to be imposing on the 
street scene and often cannot be supported.  However, having reviewed planning history 
in the local area, a number of applications are considered to be relevant.  

Permission was granted in 2017 (17/00012/FUL) at 172 Old Bath Road. This decision 
made reference to a previous appeal decision relating to 06/01733/FUL where the 
planning inspector stated: 

‘I saw other garages sited in front of dwellings further along the road and I therefore 
consider garages positioned forward of the building line are already an established feature 
of the street scene.’ 

A further application at 176 Old bath road (08/01225/FUL) also granted permission for a 
garage forward of the existing building.  

In addition, planning permission was recently granted in 2018 (18/01348/FUL) for a 
detached garage in the front of the existing building at number 157 Old Bath Road, just a 
few doors down from the application site. 

Having reviewed this relevant planning history, officers consider the principle of a garage 
in the proposed location to be acceptable. 

6.9 The external finish of the proposed garage includes low level facing brickwork, rendered 
walls and brown concrete roof tiles to match the existing building.  The overall scale, form 
and design of the proposed garage is appropriate for its location and will reflect the 

Page 48



general design and finish of the existing building, therefore allowing it to read as a 
sympathetic addition to the site. 
 

6.10 Officers duly note the concerns raised by the immediate land users regarding the impact 
of the proposed development on the character of the area. Whilst officers accept the scale 
form and general design to be acceptable, it is also considered necessary for a robust 
planting scheme to be put in place in order to reduce the visual impact of the new 
structure and to provide a soft boundary that reflects other frontages in the area.  

There is an existing planting scheme in place which consists of Portuguese Laurel sat 
within raised planting beds; however, officers have noted that this planting is failing in 
places. Having sought advice from the council’s tree officer and having discussed this 
further with the applicant’s agent, a revised plan has been submitted which shows the 
raised beds being removed and the planting of new privet hedging proposed. The tree 
officer has advised that the removal of the raised planting beds will encourage better 
growth of the new planting.  Officers consider that the revised planting proposal will be an 
improvement and once matured will provide a soft boundary to the site that will also serve 
as a buffer between the highway and the proposed garage.   

6.11 It is for these reasons that officers consider the principle, scale form and design of the 
proposed new garage to be acceptable and compliant with the requirements of the local 
plan policy CP7 and adopted JCS policy SD4. 

6.12 Impact on neighbouring property  

6.13 Due to the scale, form and position of the proposed garage and the relationship with 
neighbouring land users, it is not considered that the proposed development will result in 
any unacceptable loss of light or overbearing impact to any neighbouring land user.  

6.14 The proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with Local Plan policy CP4 and 
adopted JCS policy SD14 which requires development to protect the existing amenity of 
neighbouring land users and the locality. 
 

6.15 Access and highway issues  

6.16 Gloucestershire Highways have been consulted on this application and no objection has 
been raised. Having discussed this further with the highways officer, no objection has 
been raised due to the fact that vehicular trips already occur on the site and the garage 
would not generate additional movements. 

6.17 Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring land user regarding ease of access to the 
garage if built. A gap of approximately 5.5 metres will remain between the front of the 
proposed garage and the boundary line, this is considered to be sufficient space to enable 
a car to enter and exit the garage safely. 

6.18 The proposal is not considered to result in any highway safety implications and is 
therefore compliant with adopted JCS policy INF1. 

6.19 Impact on Trees 

6.20 The Councils tree officer has reviewed the application to consider the impact of the 
proposed development on the existing street tree located on the footpath adjacent to the 
site. The tree officer does not object to the proposed development but has requested 
further details regarding the proposed foundations. A condition requiring these details to 
be submitted has been suggested. 

 

Page 49



7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 Having considered all of the above, officer recommendation is to permit the application, 
subject to the conditions set out below: 

 

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES  
 
 1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 All landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 

works shall be carried out prior to first beneficial use of the development unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

  
 Any planting indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five years from 

the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying 
shall be replaced during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a 
location, species and size which shall be first agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to 

saved policies CP7, GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and 
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 4 Prior to the commencement of development (including site clearance), the following 

details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
  

a) full details of the proposed method for any ground works (including foundations) 
within the tree Root Protection Area(s) 

  
 The development shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details. 
  
 Reason: To safeguard the existing tree(s) in the interests of visual amenity, having 

regard to saved policies GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006). 
Approval is required upfront to ensure that important trees are not permanently 
damaged or lost. 

 
 5 Any works taking place in the root protection area shall be carried out by hand and no 

roots over 25mm to be severed without the advice of a qualified arboriculturalist or 
without written permission from the Local Planning Authority's Tree Officer.  

  
 Reason: To safeguard the retained/protected tree(s) in accordance with Local Plan 

Policies GE5 and GE6 relating to the retention, protection and replacement of trees. 
 

 
 

Page 50



INFORMATIVES 
 
 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development.  

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

  
 In this instance, the authority sought a revised planting scheme. 
  
 Following these negotiations, the application now constitutes sustainable development 

and has therefore been approved in a timely manner. 
 
 2 It is strongly recommended that suitable leaf guards to cover guttering and down pipes 

are installed onto external rain drainage pipework so as to reduce the incidence of such 
blocked pipework as a result of tree related litter-fallen leaves, twigs, fruit etc 

 
   
 

 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPLICATION NO: 19/01230/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes 

DATE REGISTERED: 22nd June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 17th August 2019 

WARD: College PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Sean Durkin 

LOCATION: 151 Old Bath Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Erection of detached garage 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  2 
Number of objections  2 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

153 Old Bath Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 7DN 
 

 

Comments: 12th July 2019 
I object to the following proposal for the following reasons: 
 
1. Visual impact/visual amenity:  
From the pavement, the proposal would look unsightly and out of keeping with all of the nearby 
properties. Those houses with garages are sited alongside rather than directly in front of them as 
this proposes. Furthermore, from our aspect it would cause a detrimental impact to the view over 
neighbouring gardens as the garage proposed has a very much higher pitched roof and bigger 
footprint than depicted in the 3D pictures. The planting cannot disguise the building, nor is the 
wall representative of its true height. The building would look even more obvious during the winter 
months when the foliage of most of the plants and trees nearby dies back. Granting such 
permission would set a precedent all down the Old Bath Road, significantly detracting from its 
rural, green and attractive appearance, in effect promoting a greater urbanisation of a biodiverse 
Green area where almost all properties have well tended front gardens. 
 
2. Traffic & Safety:  
Parking in the garage will be challenging, requiring multiple turns in a drive which already has a 
minimum of 3 medium to large vehicles parked on it and often more and would create more 
fumes and pollution. A smaller turning area would make parking tricky and exiting/entering from 
the road more challenging. The result is likely to be a preference for reversing out into the road, 
which would endanger not only other vehicular traffic but also pedestrians and cyclists, especially 
as the access is on a blind bend. This would become almost a requirement for visitors. In 
addition, with less parking space there is a real concern that visitors' traffic would have to kerb 
park nearby, possibly affecting egress/ingress from nearby properties, adding to the already and 
known dangers on the bend. In order to mitigate the dangers of this bend the home owner has 
already closed one entrance to his driveway, so this corner has already been identified as a risk. 
 
3. Amenity/Environment: 
Damage to mature trees and planting: digging the foundations is likely to damage the nearby 
mature tree and other planting which would be a health and safety risk and spoil the visual impact 
of the area.  

Page 53



 
Comments: 15th July 2019 
I am the owner and resident of one of the two directly neighbouring properties affected by this 
proposal at 151 Old Bath Road.  I live at 153 Old Bath Road. 
 
I attach the reasons for my objection in the attached note which is a copy of the text I submitted 
on line. 
 
I am very grateful that the site has been pegged as some of the 3d images attached to the 
planning application were seriously inaccurate and misrepresentative. 
 
I hope my comments will be given due consideration before any decision is made. 
 
   

149 Old Bath Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 7DN 
 

 

Comments: 15th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
 
  
 

 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



 

APPLICATION NO: 19/01237/FUL OFFICER: Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 25th June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 20th August 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 25th June 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT:  

WARD: Charlton Kings PARISH: Charlton Kings 

APPLICANT: Mr Putman 

AGENT: Stanley Partnership Architects 

LOCATION: 1 Hamilton Street, Charlton Kings, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Single storey, one bed dwelling (revised scheme ref: 19/00756/FUL) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 
 

 
  

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 57
Agenda Item 6c



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site is located on the corner of Hamilton Street and Cudnall Street, and 
currently forms part of the curtilage to no. 1 Hamilton Street; a 1960’s semi-detached, two 
storey dwelling. The site is rectangular in shape and at present accommodates a 
detached car port. Land in the vicinity slopes away to the south. 

1.2 The site is located within Charlton Kings parish, the Principal Urban Area (PUA), and is 
immediately adjacent to, but outside of, the Cudnall Street Conservation Area. The 
property immediately opposite the site on Cudnall Street, Elborough Cottage, is grade II 
listed; additionally, the properties to either side of this listed building are locally indexed. 

1.3 The application proposes the demolition of the existing car port, subdivision of the plot, 
and the erection of a single storey, one bed dwelling. The scheme has been revised 
during the course of the application. 

1.4 The application is at committee following an objection from the parish council. 

1.5 Members will visit the site on planning view.  

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
Principal Urban Area 
Smoke Control Order 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
19/00576/FUL        WITHDRAWN     3rd May 2019      
Erection of a three storey, two and a half bed dwelling 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 2 Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4 Decision-making 
Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places  
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
GE 5 Protection and replacement of trees  
GE 6 Trees and development  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD8 Historic Environment 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 
INF1 Transport Network 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Development on garden land and infill sites in Cheltenham (2009) 

Page 58



Cudnall Street conservation area character appraisal and management plan (2009) 
 
 

4. CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
Wales and West Utilities 
2nd July 2019  
Letter and plan available to view. 
 
 
Cheltenham Civic Society 
24th July 2019 # 
The Civic Society's Planning Forum could possibly support an application for a smaller 
single storey development, but not a two-storey building. Despite the Hamilton Street 
address, this location is part of the Cudnall Street scene and the proposed two storey 
building would unsatisfactorily impinge visually on the Cudnall Street Conservation Area. 
 
 
Building Control 
28th June 2019  
The application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Building Control on 01242 264321 for further information. 
 
 
Parish Council 
18th July 2019  
Objection: 
 
The Committee objects to the application on the following grounds: 
 
With reference to our objection to Application 19/00576/FUL, this application does 
substantially address our concern that the original proposal would be overbearing to the 
street and in particular to No.36. 
 
However, it does not address our concerns about building forward of the building line of 
Cudnall Street, breaking up the view along the street, as detailed below. 
 
It similarly does not address our concern about the loss of off-road parking spaces and an 
increased number of cars to be parked, exacerbating the already difficult situation of illegal / 
inconsiderate parking, again as detailed below. 
 
The drawings indicate a mature tree in the small remaining garden area. However, the 
mature tree on site is not in this location and would need to be removed for the 
development to take place. The loss of this existing tree would be detrimental to the street 
scene. 
 
The high boundary wall the length of the development would be a very stark large area of 
brickwork and as such be detrimental to the street scene. The planters detailed on the wall 
would help break up the large expanse of brickwork but the Committee do not believe that 
maintaining such plant growth could be a made a condition of planning that would be 
enforced and therefore the planters cannot be relied upon to soften the expanse of 
brickwork. 
 
Parish Council – revised comments 
8th August 2019 
The Committee objects to this application on the following grounds. 
 

Page 59



It does not address our concerns about building forward of the Building line of Cudnall 
Street breaking up the view along the street. 
 
It does not address our concerns about the loss of off road parking spaces and increases 
the number of cars to be parked in the street exacerbating the already difficult situation of 
illegal / inconsiderate parking. 
 
The Committee was pleased to note the Objection to the application by the Trees Officer on 
the importance of the tree in the garden to the street scene. 
 
It does not address our concerns about the high boundary wall running the length of the 
plot which is detrimental to the street scene. 
 
Finally the Committee was dismayed by the quality of the proposals detailed in the revised 
plans and elevations. 
 
The dwelling was described by a local resident attending our meeting as resembling a 
shipping container and we would agree, neither the design or the proposed materials are 
worthy of a dwelling in a conservation area. 
 
 
Tree Officer 
24th July 2019  
The Tree Section Objects to this application. This tree is one of the few trees along Cudnall 
Street and is important to the street scene. There is limited space for any replacement 
planting should this tree be removed to enable the development. 
 
 
Heritage and Conservation 
9th August 2019 
 
Significance 
The proposal site abuts the Cudnall Street Conservation Area, which was designated by 
Cheltenham Borough Council on 2 October 1989 and was subsequently re-designated with 
minor boundary changes on 15 November 2001. For clarity only part of Hamilton Street, a 
section of the eastern side, is in the conservation area.  
 
Immediately to the south of the site is a Grade II listed building; 36 Cudnall Street 
(Elborough Cottage), list entry number: 1386609.  
 
Legislation and policy 
Section 66 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
the local planning authority when considering whether to grant planning permission, to 
“have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any 
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.”  
 
Paragraph 184 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) states that 
“Heritage assets…are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a manner 
appropriate to their significance”.  
 
Policy SD8 (Historic Environment) of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint 
Core Strategy 2011-2013 (adopted December 2017) (JCS) states that 
“Designated…heritage assets and their settings will be conserved and enhanced as 
appropriate to their significance.”  
 
 
 

Page 60



Comment 
The NPPF defines the setting of a heritage asset as “The surroundings in which a heritage 
asset is experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its 
surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to 
the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be 
neutral.”  
 
The proposal site is within the setting of the two designated heritage assets as above; the 
conservation area and a listed building. 
 
The proposed development is to the north of the listed building (No. 36) and it will not 
hinder views from Cudnall Street of the front elevation of No. 36; views being the principal, 
though not exclusive way, in which heritage assets are experienced. From Hamilton Street 
it is not apparent that views of No. 36 will be disrupted given the elevation and as the 
development is set back behind the building line of the front of No. 1 Hamilton Street. The 
proposal is of a contemporary design that though in clear contrast to the architecture of No. 
36 it does presents an honest and distinct single storey subservient form that allows the 
listed building to be clearly legible and appreciated as a historic building. How No. 36 is 
experienced in its surroundings will be maintained and therefore there is no detriment to its 
significance.  
 
The Cudnall Street Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan, adopted 
by Cheltenham Borough Council on 29 June 2009 as a Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) states (un-numbered page immediately before p.1) that the area derives its special 
interest from a number of key characteristics including, 
 
“The Conservation Area has a diverse mix of building type, style, age and function. The 
different size blocks, varied roof lines and mix of architectural features adds to the special 
interest…through the visual variety of buildings, their varied details and materials, and their 
varied relationships to each other.”  
 
Though the proposal site is not in the conservation area its form does reflect the key 
characteristic of the SPD, the publication being a material consideration in decision making.  
 
The setting of the conservation area in the vicinity of the site (the western side of Hamilton 
Street) is comprised of buildings of the latter half of the twentieth century that are typical of 
their date and type, and lack notable quality and architectural style. This is in contrast with 
the obvious historic and architectural interest of buildings in the conservation area. 
Whatever the perceived architectural quality of the proposal it will not detract from the 
setting of the conservation area given its evident existing character and therefore the 
significance of the conservation area will be maintained.  
 
The proposal will be forward of the building line of buildings within the conservation area, 
including but not limited to Nos. 35, 37, 39 and 45 Cudnall Street, however that shared line 
is not consistent given that of No. 43. This aspect can be seen to be in keeping with the key 
characteristic as given above.  
 
Conclusion  
The proposal will not detract from the settings of the designated heritage assets and 
therefore the significance of the assets will not be harmed; given this the scheme is 
acceptable.  
 
 
Architects Panel 
13th August 2019 
The panel was not convinced this was a site for a new single storey dwelling due to the 
limited area of the site and the buildings impact on surrounding properties. 

Page 61



 
Although technically not in the Conservation Area, the site is nevertheless adjacent to 
buildings of heritage value. At the very least, the scheme needs to be seen in context with 
adjacent buildings to assess its impact. The panel felt the “container” like aesthetic of the 
dwelling was not appropriate in this location. 
 
A two storey building that takes up less footprint and is in keeping with the Conservation 
Area vernacular might prove a more successful design approach. The panel felt the 
submitted scheme was a wasted opportunity. 
 
Not supported. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

5.1 On receipt of the original proposals, letters of notification were sent to 19 neighbouring 
properties; in addition, a site notice was posted adjacent to the application site. Additional 
letters were sent on receipt of the revised plans. In response to the publicity, objections 
have been received from the owner/occupiers of 10 neighbouring properties.  All of the 
comments have been circulated in full to Members but the main concerns relate to:  

 Impact on adjacent conservation area 

 Impact on adjacent listed building 

 Parking and highway safety 

 Design out-of-keeping 

 Loss of tree 

 Impact on amenity 
 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining issues  

6.1.1 The main considerations when determining this application relate to the principle of 
development; design and impact on the historic environment; impact on neighbouring 
amenity; and highway safety. 

6.2 Principle of development 

6.2.1 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out a “presumption in favour of sustainable 
development” which for decision-taking means approving development proposals that 
accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay.  

6.2.2 Where housing policies are out-of-date (including situations where the local planning 
authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites), the NPPF is 
clear that development proposals should be approved without delay unless any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the NPPF policies as a whole, or specific NPPF policies provide clear 
reason for refusal; as it stands, the Council is currently unable to demonstrate such a five 
year supply.  

6.2.3 Notwithstanding the above, adopted JCS policy SD10 supports new housing 
development in Cheltenham where it is infilling within the existing built-up area of the 
PUA.   

Page 62



6.2.4 As such, there is no fundamental reason to suggest that the general principle of 
developing the site for housing is unacceptable; subject to the material policy 
considerations set out below.  

6.3 Design and impact on the historic environment  

6.3.1 Saved local plan policy CP7 and adopted JCS policy SD4 require new development 
to respond positively to, and respect the character of, the area in which it is located; 
addressing the surrounding urban grain in terms of layout, mass and form. The scale, 
type, materials and density should also be appropriate to the site and its setting. The 
policies are consistent with the general advice set out within Section 12 of the NPPF. 

6.3.2 Additional advice is set out in the Council’s adopted SPD relating to development on 
garden land and infill sites, which sets out that various elements combine to create the 
character of an area and that “Responding to character is not simply about copying or 
replicating what already exists in an area. It is not merely about preservation of what is 
important about a place but must also allow a place to evolve in a manner which is 
appropriate to the context of the place”. 

6.3.3 In addition, JCS plan SD8 requires both designated and undesignated heritage 
assets and their settings to be conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their 
significance, and is consistent with paragraph 192 of the NPPF that advises that in 
determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take into account:  

 the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;  

 the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and  

 the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness.  

6.3.4 Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
also requires the Local Planning Authority to pay special attention to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area. 

6.3.5 Members will note from the consultee responses at Section 4 above, that there is 
clearly a difference of opinion between the Architects Panel and the Civic Society as to 
how to develop this site if it is accepted as a plot. The Civic Society (commenting on the 
original scheme) suggest that they “could possibly support an application for a smaller 
single storey development, but not a two-storey building”, whilst the Architects Panel 
(commenting on the revised proposal) suggest that “A two storey building that takes up 
less footprint and is in keeping with the Conservation Area vernacular might prove a more 
successful design approach”. 

6.3.6 Officers share the opinion of the Civic Society that a single storey building is more 
suitable in this location and consider that, as originally submitted, the proposed dwelling 
would have appeared as an obtrusive and incongruous addition within the street scene, 
breaching the established building line along this part of Cudnall Street.  Officers think that 
the revised scheme which omits the first floor element would be a far more discreet 
addition within the street scene; albeit views of the dwelling would undoubtedly be 
available from the public realm. 

6.3.7 It should be noted that a single storey outbuilding or annexe (potentially with a larger 
footprint up to 50% of the total curtilage) with an eaves height of 2.5 metres could be 
constructed in this location under permitted development rights, and as such, it would be 
difficult to resist the principle of a detached single storey building in this location. 

Page 63



6.3.8 The concerns raised in relation to the design have been duly noted but, whilst the 
design might not be to everyone’s taste, the Conservation Officer considers that the 
contemporary design approach in contrast to the architecture of the adjacent Elborough 
Cottage “presents an honest and distinct single storey subservient form that allows the 
listed building to be clearly legible and appreciated as a historic building” and that how the 
listed building “is experienced in its surroundings will be maintained and therefore there is 
no detriment to its significance”. Overall, they conclude that “The proposal will not detract 
from the settings of the designated heritage assets and therefore the significance of the 
assets will not be harmed; given this the scheme is acceptable”.  

6.4 Impact on neighbouring amenity  

6.4.1 Saved local plan policy CP4 advises that development should avoid causing 
unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users and the locality. The policy is 
consistent with advice set out within adopted JCS policy SD14 and paragraph 127 of the 
NPPF. 

6.4.2 Given the single storey nature of the dwelling now proposed, the development would 
not result in any amenity concerns with regard to privacy, outlook or daylight.  

6.5 Parking and highway safety  

6.5.1 Adopted JCS policy INF1 seeks to ensure that all new development proposals 
provide a safe and efficient access to the highway network for all transport modes, and to 
encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport. Planning permission will only be 
refused on highway grounds granted where the impact of the development is considered 
to be severe. The policy reflects the advice set out within Section 9 of the NPPF. 

6.5.2 The concerns raised by local residents in relation to parking and highway safety 
have been duly noted; however, the application does not propose any changes to the 
existing vehicular access points.  Both the existing and proposed dwelling would have one 
on-site car parking space available. This level of parking provision given the highly 
sustainable nature of the site, in close proximity to a wide range of services and facilities, 
and public transport links, is considered to be acceptable.  There are currently no 
minimum parking standards to which the development must adhere. 

6.6 Other considerations  

6.6.1 It is noted that the Tree Section objects to the removal of the tree within the site, and 
that there is limited space for any replacement planting; however, the tree is not protected 
and could therefore be removed at any time by the applicant. The Tree Officer has 
confirmed that whilst the tree has some amenity value it would not be worthy of a Tree 
Preservation Order. 

6.6.2 Whilst records show that important species (various birds and a hedgehog) have 
been sighted near the application site in recent years, the proposals are unlikely to have 
any impact on these species given the scale of the development. 

6.6.3 Following subdivision of the plot, adequate private amenity space for both the 
existing and proposed dwelling can be achieved within the site; there are no minimum 
space standards to adhere to. 

6.7 Recommendation 

6.7.1 With all of the above in mind the recommendation is to grant planning permission 
subject to the following conditions: 

 

Page 64



7. SUGGESTED CONDITIONS 
 
 1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 Prior to the commencement of development, including any works of demolition or site 

clearance, a Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 The approved method statement shall be adhered to throughout the development 

process and shall: 
 

i) specify the type and number of vehicles expected during the demolition and 
construction of the development; 

ii) allocate space for the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors; 
iii) allocate space for the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iv) allocate space for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 
v) specify the intended hours of work; 
vi) specify measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during 

demolition and construction; and 
vii) provide for wheel washing facilities, where necessary. 

  
 Reason: To minimise disruption on the public highway and to adjacent land users, and 

accommodate the efficient delivery of goods and supplies during the course of the 
construction works, having regard to adopted policies SD14 and INF1 of the Joint Core 
Strategy (2017). Approval is required upfront because without proper mitigation the 
works could have an unacceptable impact during construction. 

 
 4 No external facing or roofing materials shall be applied unless in accordance with:  
 a) a written specification of the materials; and/or  
 b) physical sample(s )of the materials.  
 The details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to 

saved policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy 
SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 5 Prior to first occupation of the development, secure covered cycle storage shall be 

provided on site in accordance with details which shall have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle storage shall thereafter 
be retained available for such use in accordance with the approved details at all times.  

  
 Reason: To ensure the adequate provision and availability of cycle parking, so as to 

ensure that opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up, having 
regard adopted policy INF1 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 

Page 65



 6 Prior to first occupation of the development, refuse and recycling storage facilities shall 
be provided on site in accordance with details which shall have first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The refuse and recycling 
storage shall thereafter be retained available for such use in accordance with the 
approved details at all times.  

  
 Reason:  In the interests of sustainable waste management and recycling, having 

regard to Policy W36 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 
 
 7 Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the implementation of any new boundary 

treatments, including boundary walls, fences or other means of enclosure, details shall 
have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The boundary treatments shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details prior to first occupation of the development. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and residential 

amenity, having regard to saved policies CP4 and CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough 
Local Plan (2006) and adopted policies SD4 and SD14 of the Joint Core Strategy 
(2017). 

 
 8 Prior to the implementation of any landscaping, full details of a hard and/or soft 

landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of all new hard surfacing of open 
parts of the site which shall be permeable or drained to a permeable area; a planting 
specification to include [species, size, position and method of planting of all new trees 
and shrubs]; and a programme of implementation.  

  
 All hard and/or soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details prior to first occupation of any part of the development unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Any trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five 

years from the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, 
diseased or dying shall be replaced during the next planting season with other trees or 
plants of a location, species and size which shall be first agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. All hard landscape works shall be permanently retained in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to 

saved policies CP7, GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and 
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 

INFORMATIVE 
 
 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development.  

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

Page 66



  
 In this instance, the authority sought revisions to the scale and massing of the dwelling 

to secure a more appropriate form of development in this location. 
  
 Following these negotiations, the application now constitutes sustainable development 

and has therefore been approved in a timely manner. 
 
   

 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPLICATION NO: 19/01237/FUL OFFICER: Miss Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 25th June 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 20th August 2019 

WARD: Charlton Kings PARISH: CHARLK 

APPLICANT: Mr Putman 

LOCATION: 1 Hamilton Street Charlton Kings Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Single storey, one bed dwelling (revised scheme ref: 19/00756/FUL) 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  11 
Number of objections  11 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

   
45 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HL 
 

 

Comments: 5th July 2019 
I object strongly to this proposal. It would seriously damage the quality of the conservation area 
onto which it abuts.  
 
1. With its roof line at the proposed height it completely blocks the sight lines along the north 

side of Cudnall Street. It does this by building well forward of all adjacent properties and on 
land previously safeguarded by planning. It will produce a large unwanted constriction right at 
the heart of the conservation area. 
 

2. It compromises rather than enhances the street's Grade 1 listed building, Elborough Cottage, 
by placing a new property within 10 metres of its front door. 

 
   

1 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HS 
 

 

Comments: 8th July 2019 
As with the previous application this proposed structure would be out of character in a 
Conservation Area and would make a bad parking situation in the area even worse.The proposed 
building represents the worst example of speculative infilling and would be a visual eyesore in an 
area containing numerous buildings of significant historic interest ! 
 
   

6 Hamilton Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HN 
 

 

Page 69



Comments: 9th July 2019 
The revised application in my view does not address any of the objections previously made. The 
proposed dwelling is in a conservation area overlooking a listed building and its design is totally 
out of keeping with other properties in the immediate vicinity. A total blot on the landscape as far 
as I am concerned! 
 
Comments: 27th July 2019 
These revised plans are even worse! It looks like an upmarket garage, totally out of character in 
this conservation area. Absolutely unacceptable. It is a very small space, totally inappropriate for 
a second dwelling apart from the impact on the surrounding area. 
 
   

45 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HL 
 

 

Comments: 2nd July 2019 
Although this submission is less imposing than the previous one, I remain concerned at the effect 
on the conservation area in which we live.  
 
While extending the existing semi to the rear could be done without serious deleterious effect, 
building any separate building on this unsuitable plot can only be to the detriment of Cudnall 
Street. As previously mentioned, any house built on this footprint, extending right to the boundary 
as it does, would effectively be in Cudnall Street, not Hamilton Street.  
 
The original building line, so much part of the charm of Cudnall Street, is not respected, and the 
sight line remains severely affected from a safety point of view. 
 
Comments: 30th July 2019 
This revised application does not address the issues that concerned us previously. It remains a 
building that protrudes beyond the building line and still blocks the view up and down the 
conservation area at a central point in Cudnall Street. The house directly abuts and intrudes into 
Cudnall Street (even more so now that a gate gives direct access to that street). The 6'4'' wall 
creates a tall and permanent barrier well inside the building line of Cudnall Street. A valuable 
mature tree has been removed. The proposal worsens already difficult parking congestion and 
traffic danger on that corner. The design is totally at odds with the surroundings, not least its 
close proximity to the historic Elborough Cottage. The building's design and building materials 
resemble a tin cabin and could hardly be more discordant. 
 
   

10 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HT 
 

 

Comments: 12th July 2019 
I refer to the revised scheme ref: 19/00756/FUL in connection with the above house.  At present, 
No. 1 has off street parking for one car and possibly a second.  All the roads in Cudnall Street are 
congested with parked cars from the surrounding small roads. If the parking was removed from 
No. 1 Hamilton Street there would be two more cars to be accommodated and presumably for the 
occupant of the new building, in the event of planning permission being granted.  There are 
parked cars in the street and two-way traffic to contend with. 
 

Page 70



I am totally against any development on this site, the mature tree (shown on the plan as being at 
the end of the garden) would be cut down and about three meters of garden would be left.  The 
whole plan is totally unsuitable. 
 
Comments: 29th July 2019 
The latest revision of the plan suggests something that would be more suitable as 
accommodation on a building site than as a "dwelling".  It is totally inappropriate for this 
conservaton area and I strongly hope that planning will be refused. 
 
   

40 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HG 
 

 

Comments: 9th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
Comments: 2nd August 2019 
Thank you for sending me notification of the revised scheme for the above property. 
 
I have viewed the revised plans carefully, and my previous objections still stand. 
 
i.e. I still believe the proposed building in inappropriate and will have an adverse effect on the 
area which is a designated conservation area. 
 
The proposal ignores the regulated building line. 
 
Parking would be a big issue.  Dangerous for both oncoming traffic, and for pedestrians unable to 
see what is coming round the corner either way. 
 
   

43 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HL 
 

 

Comments: 12th July 2019 
Letter attached. 
 
Comments: 2nd August 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
   

36 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HG 
 

 

Comments: 9th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
Comments: 29th July 2019 

Letter attached.  

Page 71



 
   

32 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HG 
 

 

Comments: 19th July 2019 
I wish to object to this application. 
 
While the new proposals are more in keeping with the buildings around, the erection of a dwelling 
here would grossly interfere with the line of Cudnall Street houses. This would not enhance the 
conservation area. 
 
Parking remains an issue: a house built here reduces the parking at no. 1, Hamilton St, and only 
has one parking space itself. Given that each house might have two cars, this may mean more 
pressure on parking in the area, already at a premium. 
 
I am intrigued as to how the cherry tree in the garden of no. 1 seems to have moved in the 
drawing of the proposed building. Actually, a building of that size would mean chopping it down. 
 
   

39 Cudnall Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HP 
 

 

  Comments: 10th July 2019 
We wish to strongly object to the proposed development for the following reasons: 
 
We believe that a new build on this site would be completely out of context, given that it is 
bordered on three sides by the Cudnall Street Conservation Area and is surrounded by buildings 
of historic significance, including 'listed buildings', 'key unlisted buildings' and 'positive buildings' 
in terms of character appraisal in the Index of Buildings of Local Interest (SPD). We think that this 
proposal is in breach of the Cudnall Street Conservation Area Management Plan Supplementary 
Planning Document. The proposed development would detract from the conservation area and 
from the setting of the historical buildings surrounding it and interfere with residents' and public 
enjoyment of this heritage site.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed development ignores the building line of the north side of Cudnall 
Street and so spoils the established built pattern that lends this historical street so much 
character.  
 
The Local Development Framework aims to prevent back garden development, yet this proposal 
leaves only three metres of garden between the side wall of our house and the single storey 
section of the building. As such, it could be classified as back garden development.  
 
We are also concerned about noise disturbance, given that the new building would be sited only 
three metres away from our living room.  
 
The architect drawings show a mature tree between the back of the development and our house, 
yet there would not be room for such a tree. Furthermore, the mature tree that is currently in-situ 
would need to be chopped down to allow for the new build.  
 

Page 72



We worry that if planning permission is granted for this footprint, it would be more difficult to 
refuse further planning consent in the future to convert the single storey section to two storey. 
This would have severe implications in terms of blocking light into our basement bedroom and 
would completely overlook our garden, negatively impacting our privacy, as well as spoiling views 
to the Cotswold scarp from our garden. The 1.5-storey section of the current proposal would also 
overlook our garden and negatively impact our privacy. 
 
No planning permission has ever been granted for access to this proposed plot from Hamilton 
Street, despite a car port existing currently and manoeuvring into and out of this spot on the 
corner puts other road users and pedestrians at risk. 
 
Finally, given that most households have two cars and the plans allow for only one parking space 
for each house, the proposed building would also be likely to increase on-street parking pressure, 
which is already at crisis point. Cudnall Street is already facing four new houses and the 
additional traffic created from yet another new build, using Cudnall Street for access is, in our 
view unwise. 
 
Comments: 4th August 2019 
Please read this objection in conjunction with our previous comments of Wednesday 10th July, 
2019. All our previous objections still stand, since nothing has been done to address these 
significant concerns. Again, this design is totally out of context and at odds with the historical 
buildings that surround it. We agree with other comments that the latest proposal resembles a 
shipping container plonked amidst historical buildings. Again, it ignores the building line, 
increases pressure on parking, blocks the views in the conservation area, spoils the openness of 
Cudnall street and if it is allowed to go ahead, then the council will be condoning a driveway 
leading onto a blind corner, in a busy area that is used as a cut through. This will be dangerous 
for both traffic and pedestrians. 
 
   

3 Hamilton Street 
Charlton Kings 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL53 8HN 
 

 

Comments: 14th July 2019 
I object to this proposed building, which is effectively on Cudnall Street, as it is completely out of 
character with the surrounding area which is one of the prettiest and most historic streets in 
Charlton Kings. 
 
With the benefit of 60 years of hindsight, numbers 1, 3, 5 and 7 Hamilton Street should never 
have been built, as they jar with the rest of the street, and with Cudnall Street. As a result of this 
the conservation area boundary carves out 1 Hamilton Street, preventing the entirety of Cudnall 
Street from being in a conservation area. 
 
At least there was an attempt at the time to set the development well back from Cudnall Street 
and maintain good lines of sight across the corners from North to East and North to West. 
 
This proposed development breaches the North to West line of sight and builds right up against 
the pavement of Cudnall Street, taking advantage of the ill-considered boundary of the 
converation area. In all but name this is a new and modern house on Cudnall Street, directly 
opposite a Grade II listed building. 
 
In addition, subsequent to the original construction, a driveway has been built at 1 Hamilton 
Street which is on a blind corner, and will presumably be in frequent use if this development goes 
ahead, increasing congestion and the risk of road traffic accidents. 
 

Page 73



The proposed development compounds a poor planning decision that was taken 60 years ago. I 
would hope that a second mistake is not made. 
 
As regards my own property, the proposed development impacts my view of Cudnall Street, but 
not to a great extent and this is not the basis of my objection. 
 
 
 
  
 

 

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION NO: 19/01296/FUL OFFICER: Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 28th August 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT: 2nd August 2019 

WARD: Lansdown PARISH: n/a 

APPLICANT: Mr Mike Mellor 

AGENT: Mrs Clare Wood 

LOCATION: Engadine, 3 Wendover Gardens, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement dwelling 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 
 

 
  

 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 97
Agenda Item 6d



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site is located at the end of Wendover Gardens, a small cul-de-sac on the 
northwest side of Christchurch Road. The site is located just within the Eldorado character 
area of the Central conservation area, and adjacent to the Lansdown character area. 

1.2 The existing dwelling on site is a detached two storey property, largely faced in brick 
beneath a pitched concrete tiled roof. There is a large flat roofed addition to the northeast 
of the property. 

1.3 Previously, in September 2016, planning permission (ref. 16/01436/FUL) was granted for 
the complete remodelling and extension of the existing dwelling; this permission remains 
extant. 

1.4 This application is now proposing the erection of a replacement dwelling following 
demolition of the existing building. 
 

1.5 Revised plans have been submitted during the course of the application to reduce the 
extent of the first floor balcony to reflect that of the previously approved scheme, and to 
introduce an additional roof light to the kitchen area, and an external door to the utility.    
Additionally, drawings have been provided to demonstrate the similarities between the 
scale and massing of the approved scheme and that now proposed. 

1.6 Notwithstanding the revised/additional plans, the application is at planning committee at 
the request of Councillor Mason for the following reasons: 

 the size of the new building; 

 the short distance between the building and the boundary of two neighbouring 
properties; and 

 the size and design of the balcony, and the loss of privacy to four neighbouring 
properties. 

1.7 The Civic Society's Planning Forum also considers the proposed dwelling to be too large 
for the plot. 

1.8 Members will visit the site on planning view. 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
Conservation Area 
Principal Urban Area 
Residents Association 
Smoke Control Order 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
16/01436/FUL         PERMIT   22nd September 2016      
Remodelling and extension of existing dwelling 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 4 Decision-making 

Page 98



Section 12 Achieving well-designed places  
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 3 Sustainable environment  
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Eldorado Character Area Appraisal and Management Plan (2008) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
Cheltenham Civic Society 
24th July 2019  
The Civic Society's Planning Forum believes that the proposed dwelling is too large for the 
plot. The application lacks any contextual drawings and the elevation is poorly presented. 
 
 
Building Control 
5th July 2019  
The application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury borough council on 01242 264321 for further information. 
 
 
Gloucestershire Centre for Environmental Records 
30th July 2019  
Biodiversity report available to view. 
 
 
Architects Panel 
13th August 2019 
The panel had no objection to the principle of a replacement dwelling on this site. 
 
The panel thought the amended scheme to be acceptable. 
 
Support. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

5.1 Letters of notification were sent out to 22 neighbouring properties.  In addition, a site 
notice was posted and an advert published in the Gloucestershire Echo. Seven 
representations have been received in response to the publicity raising the following 
concerns:  

 Overdevelopment / visual impact 

 Loss of privacy / increase in noise  

 Out-of-keeping 

 Height 

Page 99



 Covenant 
 
 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 The principle of development has largely been established by the previous grant of 
planning permission for alterations and extensions to the existing dwelling; this permission 
remains extant and is a material consideration in the determination of this application. 
Details of the previously approved scheme will be available at the committee meeting. 

6.2 Neighbouring amenity in terms of privacy, outlook and daylight was carefully considered in 
the determination of the previous application and, as the images below demonstrate, the 
scale, massing and footprint of the dwelling now proposed is very similar to the extant 
scheme and would not result in any additional harm (the red line denotes the outline of the 
extant scheme). A similar condition to that previously imposed in relation to the new upper 
floor windows in the rear elevation is recommended together with an additional condition 
restricting access to the flat roof area, other than the balcony shown on the revised plan, 
for maintenance purposes only. 
  
 

  

 Ground floor      First floor   

  

 Elevations 1      Elevations 2 

6.3 As such, whilst the concerns raised by local residents have been duly noted, officers 
consider the scheme to be acceptable on amenity grounds; it should be noted that no 
objection was raised by local residents in response to the extant scheme. 
 

6.4 Additionally, a contemporary design approach on this site has been previously supported. 
Whilst it was noted in the previous officer report that the extensions would not read as 
subservient additions, and that the external alterations would undoubtedly alter the 
character and appearance of the existing dwelling, officers do not consider that harm 
would be caused to either the existing dwelling or locality. The scheme now proposed is 

Page 100



considered to be an enhancement to the conservation area, and the Architects Panel also 
support the proposal.  
 

6.5 Members will note on planning view, that the property at the entrance to Wendover 
Gardens, 51 Christchurch Road, has been altered and extended, with the introduction of 
render to the elevations, grey powder coated aluminium windows, and grey roof tiles 
resulting in a wholly contemporary appearance which is not harmful to the character of the 
area. 

6.6 The recommendation therefore is to grant planning permission subject to the conditions 
below:  

 

7. SUGGESTED CONDITIONS  
 
 1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
 
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that 
order), the first floor windows in the rear (northwest) elevation serving the master 
bedroom shall at all times be glazed with obscure glass to at least Pilkington Level 3 (or 
equivalent) and shall incorporate a restricted opening mechanism, details of which shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
their installation. 

 
 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties, having regard to saved 

policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy SD14 of 
the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 4 The flat roof area of the development hereby permitted, other than the balcony shown 

on Drawing No. 114-06 REV D, shall not be used as a roof garden or other external 
amenity area at any time.  Access to the flat roof shall be for maintenance purposes 
only. 

 
 Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties, having regard to saved 

policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy SD14 of 
the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
   

INFORMATIVE 
 

 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 

Page 101



when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development. 

 
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

 
 In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the application 

constitutes sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely 
manner. 

Page 102



 
APPLICATION NO: 19/01296/FUL OFFICER: Miss Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 28th August 2019 

WARD: Lansdown PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Mike Mellor 

LOCATION: Engadine, 3 Wendover Gardens, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement dwelling 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  7 
Number of objections  7 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

Saint Florence Villa 
21 Eldorado Crescent 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PY 
 

 

Comments: 23rd July 2019 
Our main objections to the proposed development are listed below; 
  
1. The proposed balcony would result in loss of privacy for us and surrounding properties. The 
close proximity of the proposed development to the boundaries makes this issue more 
concerning not only for privacy, but noise levels as well. 
 
2. It is noted that the internal space is increasing from 165sqm to 325sqm, therefore the site is in 
danger of being over developed and the structure quite imposing next to the surroundings 
properties.  
 
The original design (16/01436/FUL) approved in 2016 was less imposing on surroundings, 
achieving this with use of elevations built on different planes and the interesting use of stonework 
to break surfaces up. 
 
It was also architecturally more interesting and pleasing to look at. 
   
If the development were to be approved, we would request that the following conditions be 
applied: 
 
1. Height not to exceed ridgeline of adjacent properties. 
 
2. Balcony to be restricted to the area overlooking terrace area only. We mention this because 
the drawing in the "design and access statement " indicates that the rear flat roof may be used as 
a balcony. 
 
 
   
 
 

Page 103



5 Wendover Gardens 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PA 
 

 

Comments: 25th July 2019 
My wife and I think that the proposed replacement dwelling for number 3 Wendover Gardens is 
too big for the actual plot and would not be in keeping with the other three houses in the close; 
therefore, creating a negative visual impact. 
 
   

4 Wendover Gardens 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PA 
 

 

Comments: 23rd July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
   

17 Eldorado Crescent 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PY 
 

 

Comments: 29th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
   

19 Eldorado Crescent 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PY 
 

 

Comments: 22nd July 2019 
Background: 
The rear of the proposed new dwelling directly backs the rear of our property, therefore the rear 
windows of each house will look directly at each other.  
 
The proposed dwelling will replace an existing one. The current property is set well back from the 
boundary, as is ours, and we are separated by our rear gardens and an original boundary garden 
red brick wall about 3.2 metres tall. We both therefore enjoy a high degree of privacy. 
  
Summary of concerns: 
 We have three grave concerns about the new dwelling: 
 
1. A balcony that extends to our boundary wall and which would have a significant, detrimental 
effect on our privacy and may increase noise levels when in use as a leisure area. 
 
2. There are 2 large clear rear windows in a new protruding gable end which again would 
significantly affect our privacy. 
 
3. There will be a significant visual impact as the development is higher and will be closer to our 
boundary than the existing dwelling. 
  
Character of the Existing Situation: 

Page 104



The rear of the proposed dwelling and its neighbours in Wendover Gardens, and those of 17, 19 
and 21 Eldorado Crescent is currently characterised by good sized gardens separated by high 
dividing walls and fences. The boundaries provide a great amount of privacy for all residents. 
Indeed, none of the gardens are directly overlooked by any of the other dwellings. All the 
dwellings are well set back from the boundaries. 
 
The Balcony: 
The proposed plans indicate a new, very large, single storey extension that extends up to our 
boundary wall. A certain amount of this extension is indicated to be used as a balcony. This 
balcony is capable of being extended for use in future as a large balcony or sun terrace. The 
drawing shows a long and narrow balcony (8m x 1m) that would not be appropriate for seating 
and so only would be capable of being walked along. In addition, the image of the balcony shown 
on the last page of the Design and Access Statement appears to extend along the North West 
elevation of the house. This leads us to believe an intent to use more of it for leisure use than is 
shown in the sketch of the first floor plan (drawing number 114-06). 
 
Any balcony, particularly one that extends right up to our boundary wall, will give a view directly 
over our boundary wall and into our garden and house, with no obstruction. The balcony and its 
possible extension also over looks directly into 2 other properties gardens and dwellings. This 
would be great invasion of our privacy, as well as the privacy of 17 Eldorado Crescent and 4 
Wendover Gardens. Extension of the balcony enabling leisure use will also create noise issues, 
as sounds will not be muffled by solid walls as currently is the case at ground level. 
 
It is also important to note that none of the other dwellings neighbouring the proposed dwelling 
have an open balcony. 
  
2 large window in the gable end first floor: 
The first floor windows of the gable end would be nearer our boundary than those in the existing 
dwelling. The windows are large and of clear glass and so would have an adverse impact on our 
privacy. 
 
As the first floor of the gable end extends significantly beyond the first floor of the existing 
property the 2 windows will look directly over our boundary wall and into our garden and house. 
This is a great violation of our privacy. 
 
We would also be concerned that demolishing the existing dwelling may also enable creep of the 
rear of the building further towards the boundary wall than is indicated on the plans. 
  
Visual Impact:  
The proposed dwellings upper floor is 50% wider when viewed from the rear. Whereas this by 
itself would not give us too much cause for concern, the height of the new dwelling is higher than 
the existing one. The roof profile is also reduced in height. This means that the upper windows 
extend higher than the existing ones. There is also an opportunity of 'building creep' towards our 
boundary beyond that indicated by the plan. 
  
Any increase in height would not reflect the current similar dwellings that sit in the same 
development which are all practically the same height. It would certainly dominate our outlook 
and the scene as a whole. Any increase in the height of the existing upstairs windows would 
allow further views into our garden and dwelling. 
 
The exterior of proposed dwelling is reasonably attractive, but it is a very large increase in size 
and scale, more than doubling the internal area of the existing dwelling. It is way beyond the 
scale of the other dwellings in the cul de sac. By demolishing the existing dwelling the applicant is 
proposing to take the edges of the new dwelling right up to the curtilage's boundary walls, which 
would affect three properties. 
 

Page 105



To the extent that the dwelling extends at ground floor level there would be little detrimental effect 
on us save for the use of the roof as a balcony, now or in the future. There would however be an 
adverse effect on number 4 Wendover Gardens as their boundary is a wooden fence, far lower 
than our garden wall. 
 
Objections: 
The proposed new dwelling is reasonably attractive and we have no objection to the enlargement 
of the dwelling, but it should be done in a way to maintain the existing levels of privacy and noise.  
 
We strongly disagree with the installation of a balcony and new rear windows that would enable a 
clear view of our and other residents' rear gardens and into the downstairs and bedroom floors of 
our houses.  
 
The height of any new development should not be higher than the existing building and the first 
floor building line maintained. 
 
Comments: 23rd July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
   

Cranborne 
2 Wendover Gardens 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PA 
 

 

  Comments: 22nd July 2019 
The portal to place my comments on the planning section of the council website was down on 
Sunday 21st July and I have therefore sent my comments by letter but will add this letter into the 
planning comments portal when it is functioning again. 
 
I live at number 2 Wendover Gardens, which is located in a position south west to number 3. 
 
I welcome in principle the idea of making improvements to the property at number 3 Wendover 
Gardens, particularly if they benefit the overall appearance of the house and thus the cul-de-sac. 
However, I do have some concerns and objections about the current proposed plans which are 
as follows: 
  
1. I am concerned about the height of the proposed new property. The plans suggest that it will 
be higher than all the properties in Wendover Gardens and I think there should be a height 
restriction for the plans in order to keep the roof line at level with the surrounding existing 
adjacent houses. 
 
2. I do object strongly to the proposed plans for a balcony which runs along the boundary 
between the south west side of the property and mine. This balcony will overlook three quarters 
of my garden and the back of my home. My privacy will be lost. I am very worried about this. I 
personally do not think that any balcony should be allowed on my boundary side ie south west, or 
indeed on any boundary for the same privacy reasons as this will affect neighbours in Elderado 
Crescent and number 4 Wendover Gardens. The Design and Access statement in the plans 
suggest that there is capacity for further development of the balcony section which concerns me. 
 
3. For the same reasons, I am concerned about the proposed plans to build two French windows 
from the bedroom leading onto the balcony. Once again my privacy will be lost. 
 
4. In connection with point 3, I am concerned about the noise produced if the balcony was given 
permission to be built. 
 

Page 106



5. The proposed plans suggest that the overall size of the new house will be double the size of 
the existing property. This will mean that the property will dominate the locality and will have a 
direct adverse visual impact as it currently stands. I wonder whether it will be out of proportion to 
the surrounding houses in the cul-de-sac? 
 
6. A balcony was refused permission to be built for house number 4 and there is a precedent for 
balconies to not be granted planning permission within Wendover Gardens. 
 
7. There is a covenant in the land registry deeds dated 14th June 1960, which states clearly that 
any building and alterations of properties in the cul-de-sac has to be agreed by all house owners 
in Wendover Gardens. This covenant is still legally binding and current. 
 
8. I am aware that the plans are creeping beyond the original plans and that there is potential for 
further extension or creeping of these new proposed plans which is concerning. For example, the 
plans leave open the possibility of making the second floor balcony and flat roof section further 
developed. 
  
In summary, I approve of the overall viewpoint that there is a need to modernise and develop the 
property of number 3. 
I think the plans should reflect the adjacent properties in proportion and height within this small 
cul-de-sac. 
I do object strongly to the building of the second floor balcony and the south west French 
windows. Both the balcony and the French windows would directly affect and take away my right 
of privacy. My garden and the back of my house would be overlooked and by the same token it 
would also cause noise disturbance. 
  
I would also like to add my request that the council make good any damage to the road surface 
ad curb if building work takes place, as the demolition and building works appear to be quite 
extensive. 
   
Please could you take into consideration my objection, 
  
Comments: 23rd July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
 
   

4 Wendover Gardens 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2PA 
 

 

Comments: 23rd July 2019 
   Whilst we welcome the renovation of No 3 Wendover gardens in principle, and feel it can benefit    

the Cul-de-sac, we wish to raise the following concerns regarding the above planning application: 
 
Harmful effect on amenity: 
 
1. The proposed building is very close to our boundary on the North-East and to the rear 
boundary at the North-West. This will have a significant impact on the sunlight coming into our 
garden. 
The development, whilst creating a patio facing South-West to maximise sunlight for the new 
property, is at the same time denying us sunlight on our existing patio. 
The building should therefore be moved further away from our boundary coming no closer than 
the end wall of the existing building (garage).  
 
Harmful effect on privacy 

Page 107



 
2. On the proposed plan there is a balcony, which is shown along the full length of the ground 
floor on the South-West elevation, projecting beyond the end wall of the upper floor. It will hence 
overlook directly into our and our neighbours gardens. This directly affects our privacy and 
causes concerns of possible noise. We are very surprised that the balcony has been considered 
as we were refused one on our planning application a few years ago. We had to have a Juliet 
balcony and we feel this has set a precedent. Furthermore, the Design and Access statement 
shows the balcony continuing further around the flat roof, raising concerns regarding future 
expansion of use. We feel this should be clearly addressed as unsuitable in any final planning 
agreement. 
 
Visual impact and harmful effect on local character: 
 
3. We are also concerned that the overall ridge height of any development will not exceed the 
existing buildings ridge height as this would be out of character compared to the other buildings in 
the cul-de-sac. This would also further affect the sunlight into our garden. 
The planed building is out of proportions to the size of the plot and the neighbouring buildings in 
the cul-de-sac, meaning the property will dominate the other houses, especially due to its central 
location.  
 
4. It should be noted that there is a Covenant dated 14th June 1960 made between William 
Henry George Wheeler and John Stuart Bruce Reynolds which restricts alterations to the 
property. This states that any alterations must be agreed to by all owners in the Cul-de-sac.  
 
We would also would like to make sure that any damage to the road, kerbs and pavement caused 
by the construction are repaired. 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 19/01298/FUL OFFICER: Miss Claire Donnelly 

DATE REGISTERED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 28th August 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT: 22nd July 2019 

WARD: Park PARISH: n/a  

APPLICANT: Mr And Mrs Padmore 

AGENT: RRA Architects 

LOCATION: 26 Hatherley Court Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Demolition of rear conservatory and construction of front and rear extensions along 
with internal alterations and loft conversion. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

This  site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 117
Agenda Item 6e



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site relates to a detached property located on Hatherley Court Road. The 
dwelling is sited back from the road and has a detached double garage to the front of the 
property. The application site is sited within the Dean Close & Hatherley Park Character 
Area of Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area. 

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the removal of an existing conservatory 
and construction of front and rear extensions along with internal alterations and loft 
conversion.  

1.3 The application is at planning committee at the request of both Councillor Barrell and 
Councillor Harman for the following reasons; 

- overbearing and visual impact on neighbouring resident, 

- loss of privacy and amenity for neighbouring residents, 

- loss of garden and green space in the conservation area, 

- contrary to policy CP7; development would not complement and respect neighbouring 
development and character of the area, 

- not subservient, 

- impact on Hatherley Court Gardens. 

 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

Constraints: 
Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
Conservation Area 
Principal Urban Area 
Residents Associations 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
84/00264/PF      28th June 1984     REF 
Erection Of 4 No Detached Dwellings And Lay-Out Of Informal Open Space 
***Appeal Dismissed*** 
 
96/00020/PF      22nd February 1996     PER 
Creation Of Public Parklands And 8 No. 2 Storey Residential Properties 
 
96/00929/PF      12th December 1996     PER 
(No. 26) Erection Of Conservatory 

 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 2 Achieving sustainable development 
Section 4 Decision-making 
Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities 
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places 
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 

Page 118



 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
BE 1 Open space in conservation areas  
CP 3 Sustainable environment  
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008) 
Central conservation area: Dean Close & Hatherley Park Character Area and Management 
Plan (July 2008) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
Building Control 
4th July 2019 
The extensions, internal alterations and loft conversion will require Building Regulations 
approval. 
 
 
Environmental Health 
26th July 2019 
I have no adverse comments to make regarding this application for the demolition of rear 
conservatory and construction of front and rear extensions along with internal alterations 
and loft conversion at 26 Hatherley Court Road, Cheltenham. I would recommend the 
following condition be attached to any approved permission: 
 
'During the construction phase no machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried 
out and no deliveries taken at or despatched from the site outside the following times: 
Monday-Friday 07:30hrs - 18:00hrs, Saturday 08.00hrs - 13:00hrs nor at any time on 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
 
Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records 
30th July 2019 
Biodiversity report available to view. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  

5.1 Letters have been sent to five neighbouring properties, a site notice was displayed near 
the application site and an advert has been placed in the Gloucestershire Echo; four 
responses have been received, all of which object to the proposal.  

5.2 The main concerns raised include but are not limited to the following; 

- large in scale and not subservient to host dwelling, 

- not in-keeping with other properties on the road in terms of design, 

- fails to enhance or respect the local environment, 

- the extensions would result in a dominant property that would stand out, 

- loss of privacy, 

- loss of light, 

- loss/reduction of garden/private amenity space within the conservation area, 

Page 119



- impact on Hatherley Court and Hatherley Court Gardens, 

- overbearing, 

- loss of a gap between properties. 

 
 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues  

6.2 The main considerations as part of this application are the design, the impact on the 
conservation area and the impact on neighbouring amenity.  

6.3 Design  

6.4 Paragraph 124 of the NPPF requires development to be well designed; a key aspect to 
achieving sustainable development and creates better places in which to live. Paragraph 
127 of the NPPF sets out that planning decisions should ensure development is visually 
attractive is sympathetic to local character and history and add to the overall quality of the 
area. Drawing from this, policy SD4 of the JCS and saved Local Plan policy CP7 require 
development to be of a high standard of architectural design that responds positively to 
and respects the character of the site and its surroundings.  

6.5 The council’s adopted Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Alterations and 
Extensions (2008) sets out five main design principles including maintaining character and 
achieving subservience.  The document states that an extension should not dominate or 
detract from the parent dwelling, but play a supporting role.  

6.6 The proposed two storey rear extension would project 3.2 metres beyond the rear 
elevation of the original building and extend the full width of the property. The extension 
would have two projecting gables and a new rear dormer between to facilitate the 
proposed loft conversion. The extension is considered to be relatively large in scale 
however it is considered to sit comfortably within the reasonably sized plot. 

6.7 The aforementioned SPD refers to subservience and sets out that to achieve 
subservience an extension should be no higher than the original and normally be set 
back, however given the extension is to the rear it could not be set back. The extension 
would result in the original rear elevation of the dwelling covered in an extension, however 
part of the original rear roof slope would still be visible. In this instance as the property is 
detached, and the extension is to the rear and the property is proposed to be remodelled 
is considered to be appropriate.  

6.8 A concern has been raised in regards to the extension resulting in a loss of a gap between 
properties. The extension is to the rear and whilst views of the extension will be seen from 
Hatherley Court Road when viewed at an angle, the gap between the properties would not 
be reduced. There are therefore no concerns that there would be an unacceptable loss of 
a gap and resultant ‘terracing effect’ as a result of the proposed rear extension.  

6.9 The application proposes alterations to the front elevation including; an increase in the 
width of the two storey front element by 1.3 metres, relocation of the front door and new 
porch. Concern has been raised that as a result of the proposed front extensions and 
alterations there would be an impact on the existing street scene. There is a wide variation 
of house types, use of materials and architectural styles on Hatherley Court Road; as 
such whilst the property would change visually, the change is not considered to harm the 
existing street scene given the variety of properties in the area. 

Page 120



6.10 To the rear (north east) of the site is the grade II listed Hatherley Court, concerns from 
local residents has been raised in regards to the impact of the extension on this building. 
The two storey element of the scheme is 39 metres from the listed building and the 
eastern boundary is heavily screened therefore views to the extension would be limited. 
As such, it is not considered that there would be any harm to the setting of the listed 
building.  

6.11 The dwelling sits in a generously sized plot and has a good sized rear garden. The two 
storey element of the extension would project 300mm beyond the existing conservatory 
on site, however the single storey element should project a further 2.6 metres. Local Plan 
policy BE1 sates that ‘development in a conservation area will only be permitted where it 
does not detract from the green or open character of the area’. It is considered that the 
proposed extensions would not result in a harmful loss of greenspace within the 
conservation area given the small increase in ground coverage in comparison to the 
existing as a result of the extensions.  

6.12 As such, it is considered that the proposed two storey and single storey rear extensions 
and front extension/alterations is considered to be of an appropriate design that would not 
result in harm to the conservation and therefore complies with the relevant design policies 
and guidance. 

6.13 Impact on neighbouring property 

6.14 Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires development to achieve a high standard of amenity 
for existing and future users. Policy SD14 and saved Local Plan policy CP4 require 
development not to cause an unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users 
and the locality. 

6.15 Letters have been sent to neighbouring properties, four objections have been received. 
The main concerns raised have been set out in section 5.  

6.16 A visit to the application site has been carried out and the impact in neighbouring amenity 
has been assessed. An initial concern was raised in regards to the initially submitted plans 
which showed a first floor roof terrace above the single storey rear extension which would 
result in unacceptable overlooking. This element of the scheme has since been removed 
and the proposal no longer includes a roof terrace. 

6.17 The relevant light test has been carried out on the adjoining neighbouring property, no. 27 
Hatherley Court Road. The 45 degree light test carried out on the two storey rear 
extension to assess the impact on no. 27 passes and therefore it is considered that as a 
result of the proposed two storey rear extension there would not be an unacceptable loss 
of light to the neighbouring property. 

6.18 Another concern has been raised by a neighbouring resident in terms of an overbearing 
impact. Whilst it is appreciated that the extension will be noticed by no. 27, it is considered 
that the impact would not be unacceptable to a level that would warrant a refusal of 
planning permission. In addition, it is worth noting the scale of an extension which can be 
built without the need for planning permission. The General Permitted Development Order 
sets out that a two storey rear extension can be considered as permitted development 
given that it achieves 7 metres to the rear boundary, is not set within 2 metres of the 
boundary of the site and does not project more than 3 metres from the original rear 
elevation. In this instance, the property would not fit within the limits of permitted 
development given that it is within a conservation area; however it is worth being mindful 
of the scale of development that could be built.  

6.19 Based on the above, the proposed extension would not result in an unacceptable impact 
on neighbouring amenity and therefore is considered to be acceptable in terms of the 
relevant planning policies and guidance.  

Page 121



6.20 Environmental impact 

6.21 Whilst records show important species have been sighted near to the application site 
between 2009 and 2015, it is considered that the scale of the proposed development will 
not result in a harmful impact on these species.  

 

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 Based on the above, whilst neighbour comments have been fully considered it is 
considered that the proposal is in accordance with the relevant policies and guidance in 
terms of achieving an appropriate standard of design and would not result in an 
unacceptable impact on the existing amenity of adjoining land users. 

7.2 The recommendation is to therefore permit this application, subject to the conditions set 
out below. 

 

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES 

1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years from the date of this decision. 

  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
 

 

INFORMATIVES 

1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the Local 
Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with planning 
applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise when 
dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of sustainable 
development.  

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications and 
provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to enable the 
applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

  
 In this instance, the authority sought revisions to the design to overcome concerns relating 

to impact on neighbouring amenity;  following these negotiations, the application now 
constitutes sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely manner. 

 
2 The applicant is advised that during the construction phase no machinery shall be 

operated, no process shall be carried out and no deliveries taken at or despatched from 
the site outside the following times:  

Page 122



 
 Monday-Friday 07:30hrs - 18:00hrs,  
 Saturday 08.00hrs - 13:00hrs,  
 nor at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
 
   
 

 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPLICATION NO: 19/01298/FUL OFFICER: Miss Claire Donnelly 

DATE REGISTERED: 3rd July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 28th August 2019 

WARD: Park PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr And Mrs Padmore 

LOCATION: 26 Hatherley Court Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Demolition of rear conservatory and construction of front and rear extensions along 
with internal alterations and loft conversion. 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  4 
Number of objections  4 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

23 Hatherley Court Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 3AG 
 

 

Comments: 23rd July 2019 
The proposed development seems to be excessive in that the plans suggest the property 
will be virtually doubled in size. To that extent, it will not fit in with the other properties in 
the road. 
 
   

28 Hatherley Court Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 3AG 
 

 

Comments: 28th July 2019 
I am writing as a neighbour to object this application on several grounds. 
 
This development forms one of eight modern (1990s) detached properties surrounding 
Court Gardens and is next to Hatherley Court, a listed building. 
 
In the 'Dean Close and Hatherley Park character appraisal and management plan' 
supplementary planning document (2008) both Court Gardens and Hatherley Court are 
singled out as positively contributing to the character and appearance of the character 
area. Paragraph 5.36 recognises that modern changes and intrusions have to a degree 
negatively impacted on the area's overall character and appearance and that it is 
essential that any development should preserve the setting of any adjacent listed 
buildings, landscape features and preserve or enhance the character of the conservation 
area. Consequently careful consideration must be given to the historic context, size, 
scale, height and massing of new development. 
 

Page 125



Another material consideration is the Residential Alterations and Extensions SPD. 
Extensions will be required to avoid causing harm to the architectural integrity of the 
building or group of buildings, be subservient to the existing building, and maintain the 
privacy of neighbours. Its design should echo that of the original building. 
 
The proposals which have been submitted represent a significant departure from the 
design consistency which is evident in all the other houses which surround Court 
Gardens and Hatherley Court. A common design theme of these houses is the single 
central gable. Proposing two gables results in an inappropriate scale and massing that is 
incoherent in this important local setting and it fails to enhance or respect the local 
environs. The provision of a large first floor rear balcony would intrude upon the privacy 
of neighbours at 27 & 28 Hatherley Court Road as no effort has been made to design this 
to prevent any loss of privacy, as required by the SPD.  
 
I have no issue with a sympathetically designed extension which is more respectful of the 
vista and setting of Hatherley Court and Court Gardens, and the privacy of neighbours. 
To make the development acceptable I would hope the applicant would consider 
removing the second gable and the first floor balcony. This would address my concerns 
about design, scale, setting and privacy.  
  
Should these modifications not be acceptable to the applicant I trust that the application 
will be refused as it is non-compliant with both Supplementary Planning Documents 
referred to earlier and Local Plan Policy CP7 (development will only be permitted where it 
complements and respects neighbouring development and the character of the locality 
and /or landscape. It is also arguably in contravention of Local Plan Policy BE1 which 
requires that development in a conservation area will only be permitted where it does not 
detract from the green or open character of the area.  
 
 

 25 Hatherley Court Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 3AG 
 

 

Comments: 24th July 2019 
As the occupiers of 25 Hatherley Court Road we are unable to support the current 
planning application being made in connection with the above property. The reasons for 
our objections are as follows: 
 
1 The proposed increase to the size of the house would make it out of proportion to the 
size of the neighbouring houses. The footprint would be almost half as much again from 
what it is at the moment. 
 
2 In this conservation area the proposal would significantly and detrimentally reduce the 
size of the garden. 
 
3 The houses on that side of the road were planned carefully in respect of their 
relationship to Hatherley Court at the rear of the gardens. The proposal would lead to an 
unfortunate dominance by 26 Hatherley Court Road, making it stand out awkwardly. 
 
At present the houses are carefully designed following a gentle curve of a "building line" 
at the rear, but the proposal would build out significantly from this line. 

Page 126



 
4 The view from the street up the west side of the house would now include a new wall 
and make it look as if the houses were much closer together. The verandah at the front of 
the property would be out of keeping with the appearance of the other houses, 
particularly those to the west, built at the same time. 
 
5 The impact upon the garden of 25 Hatherley Court Road would be highly significant; at 
present the garden is private and not overlooked by neighbours to the right or left. Under 
these proposals the new first floor terrace at the back of the property would have an 
uninterrupted view over the strip of land belonging to Hatherley Court in between no 25 
and 26 and into the garden of no. 25, thus removing its privacy. 
 
6 The dining extension corner is very close to the hedge and boundary with Hatherley 
Court. 
 
For these reasons we feel we have to object to this proposal as it stands. 
 
  

27 Hatherley Court Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 3AG 
 

 

Comments: 24th July 2019 
Letter attached.  
 
  
 

 

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION NO: 19/01375/FUL OFFICER: Mrs Victoria Harris 

DATE REGISTERED: 11th July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 5th September 2019 

DATE VALIDATED: 11th July 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT: 17th July 2019 

WARD: Warden Hill PARISH: Leckhampton With Warden Hill 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs B & S Hollingworth 

AGENT: VJM Design House Ltd 

LOCATION: 21 Canterbury Walk, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Two storey side & single storey rear extensions 

 

  RECOMMENDATION:  Permit 

 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 
  

Page 133
Agenda Item 6f



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application site relates to a semi-detached two-storey property located along 
Canterbury Walk.  

1.2 The application proposes the erection of a two-storey side and rear extension and single 
storey rear extension.  

1.3 The application is brought to Planning Committee due to an objection from the Parish 
Council. Full comments are in the consultations section.   

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
 Airport safeguarding over 15m 
 Principal Urban Area 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
18/00744/PREAPP      17th April 2018     CLO 
Single storey and 2 storey extension 
 

 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places  
 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records 
2nd August 2019 
Biodiversity report available to view. 
 
 
Building Control 
15th July 2019 
The application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury borough council on 01242 264321 for further information. 
 
 
Parish Council 
2nd August 2019 
The Council requests that the following observations be noted and considered by the 
Planning Committee in respect of the plans for the above application: 

Page 134



 
The Council objects to the application, for the reasons noted below. 
 
Reasons/Observations 
The proposed extension, running the full length of the property and spanning the full width 
of the existing driveway will significantly reduce natural light to the side and rear aspects of 
the neighbouring property, No 23. It will have a significant impact on the general amenity of 
the neighbouring property (No 23) and result in a very dark side entrance  
 
This extension will put a sheer 2-storey brick wall stretching the full length of the property, 
just 2 metres from the front door of the neighbouring property. The green bin represents 
where the wall will be, all along the boundary line between the 2 properties. 
 
There are no other similar 2-storey side extensions in Canterbury Walk and allowing this to 
go ahead could set a precedent that we believe would be severely detrimental to the whole 
neighbourhood.  
 
Natural light into the entrance hall, study (currently served by 1 small rear window and 1 
side window, and the sitting room (currently served by front bay window and side window) 
of No 23 will be detrimentally impacted. 
 
In view of these observation and concerns we would request that this application is put to 
the full Planning Committee. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Number of letters sent 10 

Total comments received 1 

Number of objections 1 

Number of supporting 0 

General comment 0 

 
5.1 10 letters were sent out to notify neighbouring properties of this application and in 

response to this publicity 1 objection has been received.  

5.2 The planning objections related to design and impact on amenity. 

 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues 

6.2 The key considerations in relation to this application are the design of the proposal and 
impact that it will have on the existing building and character of the locality, and the 
potential impact on neighbouring amenity.  

6.3 The site and its context  

6.4 The application site is a semi-detached pitched roof, brick property located within Warden 
Hill. The dwellings entrance hall and front door is located in the side elevation and 
accessed along a drive, the neighbouring property has a similar layout. 

6.5 The road has a mixture of dwelling types that include semi-detached two storey dwellings, 
maisonettes, bungalows and detached dwellings. The road has a strong building line with 

Page 135



gaps between properties.   A number of neighbouring properties have been extended to 
the rear but have not been extended to the side.   

6.6 Design 

6.7 Section 12 of the NPPF emphasises the importance of achieving well designed places 
that are visually attractive and sympathetic to local character and setting.  

6.8 Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) sets out that high quality, well thought out 
design is key to achieving sustainable development. The policy goes on to emphasise that 
development should positively respond to and respect the site and its surroundings.  

6.9 Saved local plan policy CP7 requires development to be of a high standard of architectural 
design and to complement and respect neighbouring development and the character of 
the locality. Paragraph 4.18 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan advises that 
'extensions to existing buildings need to be carefully designed to respect the character 
and scale of the existing building. The most important consideration is that an extension 
should not detract from the original'.  

6.10 In accordance with the Council’s supplementary planning guidance – ‘Residential 
Alterations and Extensions (2008)’, a two storey side extension should normally be set 
back from the front, principal elevation with the roof of the extension set below the main 
roof height.  

6.11 The proposed side extension is set back 665mm from the front elevation, the width is 2m 
and the ridge height and eaves height are lower than the existing building. The two storey 
extension will extend 1.4m beyond the rear elevation and the first floor does not extend 
the full width of the property and is set back 2.1m from the boundary with the adjoining 
neighbouring property No.19. The single storey extension will extend the full width of the 
existing property, extend 5.9m beyond the rear elevation and will have a flat roof with 3 
roof lanterns. The facing materials will also match the parent dwelling.  

6.12 The extension is a large addition but the ridge height is set lower than the ridge of the 
existing dwelling, it is set back from the front elevation and will not mask the original form 
of the building. On balance the design allows the extension to appear as sufficiently 
subservient overall to the existing dwelling. The proposed design, mass and scale does 
not detract from the appearance of the existing house. 

6.13 The side extension will partially close the gap between the application site and the 
neighbouring property No. 23, however a gap of 2.4m will be retained. As the gap will only 
be partially close, space between the buildings will be maintained to prevent a terracing 
effect between the existing houses. 

6.14 Overall, the proposed extension is of an appropriate design which would not be harmful to 
the character and appearance of the dwelling or its setting within the residential area. The 
proposal is therefore in accordance with policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy for 
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury (Adopted 2017), and policy CP7 of the 
Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (Adopted 2006). These policies seek to, amongst other 
things, require development to respond positively and respect the character of the area. 

6.15 Furthermore, the proposal generally accords with the overall aims and guidance of the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on 'Residential Alterations and Extensions' and also 
the National Planning Policy Framework in relation to matters of design and character. 

 

 

Page 136



6.16 Impact on neighbouring property 

6.17 Section 12 of the NPPF highlights that development should promote a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users. This is further emphasised in policy SD14 of the 
JCS and Local Plan policy CP4 which set out the requirement for development not to 
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users and the locality.  

6.18 The proposed two storey extension is to be built up to the side boundary of the adjoining 
property; No. 23 Canterbury Walk. To the side elevation of No 23 is an entrance door, a 
sitting room window and study/bedroom window. The proposal would result in a two 
storey wall within 2.4m of the side elevation of No.23, and adjacent to their drive. 

6.19 No.23 entrance door, sitting room window and study/bedroom window will be affected and 
will lose some outlook and a partial loss of daylight as a result of the extension. Whilst the 
side extension will cause some loss of outlook and daylight to the neighbour’s sitting room 
and study/bedroom, the rooms which these windows serve have additional windows to the 
front and rear that will be unaffected by the proposal. Therefore, it is considered that the 
neighbouring habitable rooms would not experience a significant loss of light or outlook as 
a result of the proposed side extension, owing to the other source of natural light and 
outlook. This is not an uncommon scenario and in rooms where there are additional light 
sources and outlook, the cumulative impact of these light sources has to be considered, 
rather than the value of each specific window. The extension will have an impact on the 
entrance door however a hall is not a habitable room and cannot be protected.  

6.20 The extension will be clearly visible from the side of No.23, from both the drive, windows 
and door but given that the windows are secondary light sources and the rear amenity 
space will be unaffected the development would be such that it would not result in 
significant overbearing effect to occupiers of this neighbouring house. 

6.21 The single storey rear extension is large however there are no concerns with regards to 
overlooking or loss of privacy, and the proposal will not affect light levels to the adjoining 
properties.  It is also noted that no letters of objection have been received from 19 
Canterbury Walk.   

6.22 When considering a proposal an important material consideration is what can be built 
under permitted development in the General Permitted Development Order (GPDO). The 
applicant could construct a single storey extension with a pitched roof along the side 
boundary under PD that would have a similar effect on the drive, windows and door of 
No.23. Also a 6m deep single storey extension to the rear could be built under the larger 
homes extensions PD process. This is an important material consideration and a fall-back 
position we need to take into account when considering the design and impact on the 
neighbours.  

6.23 Overall, the proposed extension would not result in significant adverse effects to the living 
conditions of occupiers of No.23 or any other neighbour in the area. The proposal 
therefore accords with Cheltenham Borough Local Plan Policy CP4, and Joint Core 
Strategy for Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury (Adopted 2017) policies SD4 and 
SD14. These policies include requirements for development to not cause unacceptable 
harm to neighbour amenities, amongst other things. Furthermore, the proposal is in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework with regards to ensuring a high 
standard of amenity to existing occupants and other related issues. 

6.24 Other considerations 

6.25 Whilst records show that important species or habitats have been sighted on or near the 
application site in the past, it is not considered that the proposed development will have 
any impact on these species.  

Page 137



7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 Based on the above, the proposed extension is considered to be in accordance with the 
relevant policies and guidance in terms of achieving an acceptable design and will not 
result in unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users.  

7.2 The recommendation is therefore to permit this application subject to the conditions set 
out below.  

 

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES  
 
 1 The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 All external facing and roofing materials shall match those of the existing building 

unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to 

saved policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy 
SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 
 4 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that 
order with or without modification), no additional windows, doors and openings shall be 
formed in the extension without express planning permission. 

  
 Reason:  Any further openings require detailed consideration to safeguard the privacy 

of adjacent properties, having regard to saved policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough 
Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy SD14 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). 

 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development. 

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

  

Page 138



 In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the application 
constitutes sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely 
manner. 

 
   
 

 
 

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 19/01375/FUL OFFICER: Mrs Victoria Harris 

DATE REGISTERED: 11th July 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY : 5th September 2019 

WARD: Warden Hill PARISH: LECKH 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs B & S Hollingworth 

LOCATION: 21 Canterbury Walk, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Two storey side & single storey rear extensions 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  1 
Number of objections  1 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

23 Canterbury Walk 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 3HQ 
 

 

Comments: 30th July 2019 
  I am extremely concerned about the size of this extension as: 

 

 It seems to be a much larger and imposing addition to the existing property than should be 
considered 

 

 I feel that this is a serious over-development and once completed will furnish a very 
oppressive and imposing 2 storey wall facing the entire western outlook of my property 

 

 Exiting my house, I will be confronted with a vast brick wall just 2 metres from my front door 
 

 My driveway will be turned into an alley  
 

 This will have a major impact regarding the general amenity of my property 
 

 The visual impact will be terrible  
 

 
 
  
 

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Appeals Lodged July/August 2019 
 

Address Proposal Delegated or 
Committee Decision 

Appeal Type Anticipated Appeal 
Determination Date 

Reference  

Land at Grovefield 
Way, The Reddings 

Hybrid application seeking 
detailed planning 
permission for a 5,034 
sq.m of commercial office 
space (Use Class B1), 502 
sq.m day nursery (Use 
Class D1), 1,742 sq.m Aldi 
food retail unit (Use Class 
A1), a 204 sq.m Costa 
Coffee retail unit and 
drive-thru (Use Classes A1 
and A3), with associated 
parking, landscaping and 
infrastructure works. 
Outline planning 
permission sought for the 
erection of 8,034 sq.m of 
commercial office space 
(Use Class B1), together 
with associated car 
parking, landscaping and 
infrastructure works, with 
all matters reserved 
(except access). 

Committee Hearing (following a 
public inquiry)  
 

Mid February 2020  Appeal Ref: 3200395 
16/02208/FUL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 7



Planning Appeals Determined July/August 2019 
 

Address Proposal Delegated/Committee 
Decision 

Appeal Type Outcome Reference 
 

1 Grosvenor Terrace Part retrospective 
application for the 
installation of an 
internally illuminated 
fascia sign and 
installation of an 
external roller shutter 
(revised Scheme) 

Delegated Written Reps 
 

Allowed 18/01995/ADV 
Appeal Ref: 3221866 

1 Grosvenor Terrace “                          “ Delegated Written Reps Allowed 18/01995/FUL 
Appeal  Ref: 3221864 

 
Authorised By: David Oakhill, Head of Planning, Cheltenham Borough Council 

P
age 144


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of last meeting
	6a 19/01141/FUL 2 Bethesda Street
	2 Bethesda Street - representations
	2 Bethesda letter report
	1 Bethesda
	2 Bethesda
	3 Bethesda


	6b 19/01230/FUL 151 Old Bath Road
	151 Old Bath Road - representations
	151 Bath Road letter report.rtf
	1 151 Bath Road


	6c 19/01237/FUL 1 Hamilton Street
	1 Hamilton Street - representations
	1 Hamilton letter report
	1 1 Hamilton
	2 1 Hamilton
	3 1 Hamilton
	4 1 Hamilton
	5 1 Hamilton


	6d 19/01296/FUL 3 Wendover Gardens
	3 Wendover Gardens - representations
	Wendover letter report
	1 wendover
	2 wendover
	3 wendover
	4 wendover


	6e 19/01298/FUL 26 Hatherley Court Road
	26 Hatherley Court Road - representations
	HCR letter report
	1 HCR


	6f 19/01375/FUL 21 Canterbury Walk
	21 Canterbury Walk - representation

	7 Appeals Update

